CITY OF EAGLE LAKE
THURSDAY, JULY 25,2024
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING
5:00 P.M.

CITY HALL, 705 PARKWAY AVENUE
AMENDED AGENDA

Regular City Council meetings are held the first Monday of every month at 6 p.m. All meetings are open to the
public. If you wish to address the City Council in person, please contact City Hall at 507-257-3218 or email
krausch@eaglelakemn.com or jbromeland@eaglelakemn.com. Written comments or questions for the City
Council can be submitted via USPS, email, or dropped off at City Hall. City Council meetings are now live
streamed to the City of Eagle Lake’s official YouTube Channel. If you are unable to attend a meeting, you can
view meetings by visiting the City of Eagle Lake website at eaglelakemn.com and click on the “City of Eagle
Lake MN City Council Meetings” icon on the home page of the website.

CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL

Norton White Steinberg Rohrich Whitington

NEW BUSINESS
1. Amended TIF Development Agreement for Fox Meadows Townhomes in Eagle Lake (5:00 p.m.)

2. Work Session to Review Capital Improvement Planning Project Financial Analysis for Street
Reconstruction and Utility Infrastructure Needs (5:15 p.m.)

3. Pricing for Water Meters (5:55 p.m.)

4. Work Session to Review “A Guide for Local Governments on Adult-Use Cannabis” and Discuss Next
Steps for an Ordinance to Regulate Cannabis Business (6:00 p.m.)

5. Approve Updated Job Descriptions for Administrative Clerk and Community Development Coordinator
and Commence Hiring Process (6:45 p.m.)

w
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact City Hall at 507.257.3218 or email at jpromeland@eaglelakemn.com.




W
EAGLE LAKE

WHERE OPPORTUNITY SOARS

705 Parkway Ave, PO Box 159, Eagle Lake, MN 56024
(507) 257-3218 Phone (507) 257-3220 Fax

July 25, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor Norton and City Council
From: Jennifer J. Bromeland, City Administrator
Re: Tax Increment Financing District 3-2

Shannon Sweeney with David Drown Associates will be at the meeting to present an amended
tax increment financing (TIF) development agreement for Fox Meadow Townhomes, LLC. Troy
Schrom of Schrom Construction has been working on the development of sixteen additional
housing units within the Fox Meadow Development (Phase 2 Project). Schrom has requested tax
increment financing assistance for the proposed Phase 2 project. Attached is an amended
development agreement.

If the City Council wishes to execute an amended and restated development agreement, then a
motion to that effect is needed.

Clty Administrator



Cologne Office:

D DA 10555 Orchard Road

’ Cologne, MN 55322
David Drown Associates, Inc. Phone: (952) 356-2992

Public Finance Advisors shannon@daviddrown.com

July 19, 2024

City of Eagle Lake

Attn: Jennifer Bromeland, City Administrator
P.O. Box 159

Eagle Lake, MN 56024

RE: Tax Increment Financing District 3-2
Honorable Mayor, Council Members, and Administrator Bromeland:

Troy Schrom of Schrom Construction has been working on the development of sixteen additional rental
housing units within the Fox Meadow Development (Phase 2 Project). Schrom has requested tax
increment financing assistance for the proposed Phase 2 project.

Tax Increment Financing or TIF is a tool that captures new property taxes that are generated as a result of
new development that occurs within the boundaries of a designated TIF District. For the proposed housing
project, this capture period can extend for up to 26-years. For the Phase 1 project Schrom requested that
the City reimburse 90% of the captured tax increment for a term of 13-years. The reimbursement amount
for Phase 1 was capped at $802,969 based on the projected revenues that would be received. If the same
subsidy is provided for the Phase 2 project, the estimated reimbursement amount would be increased by
$174,070 and the term of the note would be extended by 1-year.

A housing tax increment financing district requires the implementation of certain income restrictions for
rental housing projects. The developer must certify semi-annually that they are in compliance with those
income restrictions for the duration of the subsidy. For the Fox Meadows Project, those restrictions include
the following:

(a) At least 20% of the residential units in the Project must be occupied or available
for occupancy by persons whose incomes do not exceed 50% of the County median income; and

(b) The limits described in clause (a) must be satisfied through the Termination Date.
Income for occupants of units described in clause (a) shall be adjusted for family size in accordance
with Section 142(d) of the Internal Revenue Code and related regulations.

An amended development agreement has been drafted by the City’s legal counsel for consideration. If
determined to be appropriate to proceed with the supplemental subsidy as proposed, the City Council
would need to authorize execution of the amended agreement.

Please feel free to contact me if | can be of any assistance in answering questions regarding the
information provided. Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,

“\ /
- A - r i

S AL } .\ /
S ~ A

M \J

Shannon Sweeney
David Drown Associates, Inc.



AMENDED AND RESTATED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF EAGLE LAKE, MINNESOTA
AND

FOX MEADOW TOWNHOMES, LLC

This document drafted by: TAFT STETTINIUS & HOLLISTER LLP
Professional Association
2200 IDS Center, 80 South 8™ Street
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402

73106120v1



73106120v1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

ARTICLE L. DEFINITIONS oottt e e e e eeseteseteeesesraseessasssssassasssssaeaeaesaassenssssnnensanes 2
SECHON 1.1 DEFNIEONS +.vvvvooveeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesseeesseseessssessssesseesseesssssseeesesseesessesseseeeesessseeseeesssd
ARTICLE II. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ....oooiiiieeerieeeee e eeeceeeveenee e 4
Section 2.1 Representations:and Warrartiesofthe Cily cusmmswnssmomssmmmsmsssmsessmssnon 4
Section 2.2 Representations and Warranties of the Developer........ccccoevniininniiniccnennens 4
ARTICLE III. UNDERTAKINGS BY DEVELOPER AND CITY oovovveeieieiernrerreeeeee e 6
Section 3.1 Development Property and Site Improvements...........cccoeveeereniennsieninneninnns 6
Section 3.2 Limitations on Wndertaking of the Cily .cmsummmnsssmssmmovsmmsssmmsmmnsssesses 6
Section 3.3 Reimbursement: TIEF INOTE c.ovveieeeeeeeee ettt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eees b bas s e e e annnnesessaneees 6
Section 3.4 Compliance with Low and Moderate Income Requirements ............ccoeveveennens 7
Section 3.5 Real Propeity TaRES. ... v ssmsssssssy s somt om s xasssss 7
Section 3.6 Prohibition Against Transfer of Project and Assignment of Agreement........... 8
Section 3.7 Legal and Administrative EXPELSES .....ooursemeresmssssisssmsmmamsammmssssnmsessversissess 9
ARTICLE IV. EVENTS OF DEFAULT ...ttt e eee e e eesrenesenteessesessssessssassasssssssssssaes 10
Section 4.1 Events of Default DefINed ....ovee e eeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeveeieeeevrisseeeeeessessnnnnssaneesnnnnes 10
Section 4.2 Remedies On DEfAUlL.... ..ottt e e e e eeese e aas b sas s e ssnanns 10
Section 4.3 NO Remedy EXCIUSIVE ..cocveieriieiieiereeeieceeeienceeeee et saseeas s eresaenns 11
Section 4.4 NO IMplied WaIVET .....cceevieriiiieiiiieneceieciecientseeee e ere e ess e anns 11
Section 4.5 Indemmification ol TIty.. .. wecreesimmpmsamsmmmssssssmmmssimsesnmssmms 11
ARTICLE V. DEVELOPER'S OPTION TO TERMINATE AGREEMENT ........ccccoveeeeen. 13
Section 5.1 The Developer's Option to Terminate .........coccecevvevreeinnneiiinenenienece e 13
Section 5.2 ACTION 10 TOITIINIALE c.eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e eee e eeeeseeeessssasaessssessssasseesaesnnnnneeessnssssnnnnn 13
Section 5.3 EfTeCt Of TeITIMATION 1oveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e ee e e e e e sseabsereeeesseesseaeeseesesesssnsassneens 13
ARTICLE VI. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS Lottt tevteeeeeeeetsaasnseeeeesteesssnnaesssnsesaannes 14
Section 6.1 RESTTICHONS 0Tl TS c.eeeeeeeeeeeeee e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeessassssssssssssnnsnessnseesnnnnsenanssenssnes 14
Section 6.2 CONTTICES OF INTEIEST veeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e s e eeeeeeessssssassaesssseeaaeesesssssnssnrnssnnnnnanes 14
Section 6.3 Titles of Articles and SECHIONS ....uuuerruueeeieeeeeeeeeeeeraersrereeesseeesssresrnresrnneneenn 14
Section 6.4 NOHCES ANA DEMANGS ..veeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt reeeeeseeeeaseereasesasseessssnaaeeens 14
Section 6.5 COUNTEIPATTS ...cvveetiveereieieeeasteeseesesitessesseeseesseeseestesesaesneneesesseesesaessnesnsenseennanserens 15
Section 6.6 LW S OVOIIIIEE. . cammrameenssamnssmssesanmassssasn ponmmms comm o s OSSR S VA RS RS 0ES 15
Section 6.7 EXPITALION ..eiiiiiiiiieeietetete sttt a e s san e eeaseaens 15
Section 6.8 Provisions Surviving Rescission or EXpiration ........cc.coceeveeveivienieriiicnicnniennens 15
Section 6.9 ABSTERADITILY OF TIF NS, sermrsrecscenronansessositissssnmsmussmssmsnssssimmsmsmmmssmions 15
Section 6.10  AMENAIMIEAT. c.ceiiiieeeieeeeeeeee et eeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeeaasssesssssssseessasesbnnssrannssnsannns 15
EXHIBIT A Description of Development Property .......c.ccccovciiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiecncceeveeeeee A-1
EXHIBIT B FOIT OF TIE NOTE c.ueeiteeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeee et eeee et eeeseeeseeesssseesesssesnsaesessssssssesssnasasanenesanns B-1
EXHIBITC Site Inprovemuenls ....... ... sosommssssmmse i s s s st smsisss C-1
EXHIBIT D Compliance Certificate ........cccerieriirriiriiiiiieniiiesie it D-1



AMENDED AND RESTATED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, made as of the

day of , 2024, by and between the City of Eagle Lake, Minnesota (the
"City"), a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Minnesota
and Fox Meadow Townhomes, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company (the "Developer").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City and the Developer entered into a Development Agreement, dated as
of April 4, 2022, which was amended pursuant to a First Amendment to Development Agreement
dated January 9, 2023 (as amended, the “Original Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the City and the Developer have agreed to amend and restate the Original
Agreement in its entirety; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.124 through 469.133, the City
has heretofore established Development District No. 3 (the "Development District") and has
adopted a development program therefor (the "Development Program"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.174 through
469.1794, as amended (hereinafter, the "Tax Increment Act"), the City has created within the
Development District, Tax Increment Financing District No. 3-2 (the "Tax Increment District"),
and has adopted a tax increment financing plan therefor (the "Tax Increment Plan") which provides
for the use of tax increment financing in connection with certain development within the
Development District; and

WHEREAS, in order to achieve the objectives of the Development Program and
particularly to make the land in the Development District available for development by private
enterprise in conformance with the Development Program, the City has determined to assist the
Developer with the financing of certain costs of a Project (as hereinafter defined) to be constructed
within the Tax Increment District as more particularly set forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City believes that the development and construction of the Project, and
fulfillment of this Agreement are vital and are in the best interests of the City, the health, safety,
morals and welfare of residents of the City, and in accordance with the public purpose and
provisions of the applicable state and local laws and requirements under which the Project has
been undertaken and is being assisted; and

WHEREAS, the requirements of the Business Subsidy Law, Minnesota Statutes, Section
116J.993 through 116J.995, do not apply to this Agreement pursuant to an exemption for housing.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual obligations of the
parties hereto, each of them does hereby covenant and agree with the other as follows:

73106120v1



ARTICLE L

DEFINITIONS

Section 1.1  Definitions. All capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein
shall have the following meanings unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context:

Agreement means this Development Agreement, as the same may be from time to time
modified, amended or supplemented;

Business Day means any day except a Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday or a day on
which banking institutions in the City are authorized by law or executive order to close;

City means the City of Eagle Lake, Minnesota;

Compliance Certificate means the Compliance Certificate in substantially the form
attached hereto as Exhibit D;

County means Blue Earth County, Minnesota;

Developer means the Fox Meadow Townhomes, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability
company and its successors and assigns;

Development District means the real property described in the Development Program;

Development Program means the development program approved in connection with the
Development District;

Development Property means the real property described in Exhibit A attached to this
Agreement;

Event of Default means any of the events described in Section 4.1 hereof;

Legal and Administrative Expenses means the fees and expenses incurred by the City in
connection review and analysis of the development proposed under this Agreement with the
adoption and administration of the Tax Increment Financing Plan and establishment of the Tax
Increment District, the preparation of this Agreement and the issuance of the TIF Note including,
but not limited to, attorney and municipal advisor fees and expenses;

Note Payment Date means August 1, 2025, and each February 1 and August 1 of each year
thereafter to and including February 1, 2039; provided, that if any such Note Payment Date should
not be a Business Day, the Note Payment Date shall be the next succeeding Business Day;

Phase I Project means the construction of a 64-unit multifamily rental project on the
Development Property in the City;

Phase II Project means the construction of a 16-unit multifamily rental project on the
Development Property in the City

73106120v1



Prime Rate means the rate of interest from time to time publicly announced by U.S. Bank,
National Association in Minneapolis, Minnesota, as its "reference rate" or any successor rate,
which rate shall change as and when that prime rate or successor rate changes;

Project means the Phase I Project and the Phase II Project;

Site Improvements means the site improvements to be undertaken on the Development
Property as identified on Exhibit C attached hereto;

State means the State of Minnesota;

Tax Increment Act means Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.174 through 469.1794, as
amended;

Tax Increment District means Tax Increment Financing District No. 3-2, located within the
Development District, a description of which is set forth in the Tax Increment Financing Plan,
which was qualified as a housing district under the Tax Increment Act;

Tax Increment Financing Plan means the tax increment financing plan approved for the
Tax Increment District by the City Council on April 4, 2021, and any future amendments thereto;

Tax Increments means 90% of the tax increments derived from the Development Property
which have been received and retained by the City in accordance with the provisions of Minnesota
Statutes, Section 469.177;

Termination Date means the earlier of (i) February 1, 2039, (ii) the date the TIF Note is
paid in full, (iii) the date on which the Tax Increment District expires or is otherwise terminated,
or (iv) the date this Agreement is terminated or rescinded in accordance with its terms;

TIF Note means the Tax Increment Revenue Note (Schrom Apartment Project) to be
executed by the City and delivered to the Developer pursuant to Article III hereof, the form of
which is attached hereto as Exhibit B; and

Unavoidable Delays means delays, outside the control of the party claiming its occurrence,
which are the direct result of strikes, other labor troubles, unusually severe or prolonged bad
weather, acts of God, fire or other casualty to the Project, litigation commenced by third parties
which, by injunction or other similar judicial action or by the exercise of reasonable discretion,
directly results in delays, or acts of any federal, state or local governmental unit (other than the
City) which directly result in delays.

73106120v1



ARTICLE II.

REPRESENTATIONS. AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.1  Representations and Warranties of the City. The City makes the following
representations and warranties:

(1) The City is a municipal corporation and has the power to enter into this Agreement
and carry out its obligations hereunder.

(2) Based on the representation of the Developer set forth in Section 3.4 below, the Tax
Increment District is a "housing district" within the meaning of Minnesota Statutes, Section
469.174, Subdivision 11, and was created, adopted and approved in accordance with the terms of
the Tax Increment Act.

(3)  The development contemplated by this Agreement is in conformance with the
development objectives set forth in the Development Program.

4) To finance certain costs within the Tax Increment District, the City proposes,
subject to the further provisions of this Agreement, to apply Tax Increments to reimburse the
Developer for a portion of the costs of the acquisition of the Development Property and the
construction of Site Improvements, incurred in connection with the Project as further provided in
this Agreement.

(5) The City makes no representation or warranty, either expressed or implied, as to
the Development Property or its condition or the soil conditions thereon, or that the Development
Property shall be suitable for the Developer's purposes or needs.

Section 2.2  Representations and Warranties of the Developer. The Developer makes
the following representations and warranties:

(1 The Developer is a Minnesota limited liability company and has the power and
authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder and doing so will
not violate its articles of organization, member control agreement or operating agreement, or the
laws of the State and by proper action has authorized the execution and delivery of this Agreement.

2) The Developer shall cause the Project to be constructed in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement, the Development Program, and all local, state and federal laws and
regulations (including, but not limited to, environmental, zoning, energy conservation, building
code and public health laws and regulations).

3) The construction of the Project would not be undertaken by the Developer, and in
the opinion of the Developer would not be economically feasible within the reasonably foreseeable
future, without the assistance and benefit to the Developer provided for in this Agreement.

(4) Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby, nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement is prevented, limited by or conflicts with or results in a breach of,

4

73106120v1



the terms, conditions or provision of any contractual restriction, evidence of indebtedness,
agreement or instrument of whatever nature to which the Developer is now a party or by which it
is bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing.

%) The Developer will cooperate fully with the City with respect to any litigation
commenced with respect to the Project.

(6) The Developer will cooperate fully with the City in resolution of any traffic,
parking, trash removal or public safety or nuisance problems which may arise in connection with
the construction and operation of the Project.

(7) Construction of the Phase I Project shall begin by May 1, 2023 and the construction
of the Phase I Project will be substantially completed on or before July 1, 2024, subject to
Unavoidable Delays. Construction of the Phase II Project shall begin by October 1, 2024, and the
construction of the Phase II Project will be substantially complete on or before December 31, 2025,
subject to Unavoidable Delays.

(8) The Developer will use its best efforts to obtain, or cause to be obtained, in a timely
manner, all required permits, licenses and approvals, and will meet, in a timely manner, all
requirements of all applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations which must be obtained
or met before the Project may be lawfully constructed.

9) The Developer acknowledges that Tax Increment projections contained in the Tax
Increment Financing Plan are estimates only and the Developer acknowledges that it shall place
no reliance on the amount of projected Tax Increments and the sufficiency of such Tax Increments
to reimburse the Developer for a portion of the costs of the acquisition of the Development
Property and the construction of the Site Improvements as provided in Article III.

73106120v1



ARTICLETII.

UNDERTAKINGS BY DEVELOPER AND CITY

Section 3.1  Development Property and Site Improvements. The parties agree that the
acquisition of the Development Property and the Site Improvements to be constructed by the
Developer are essential to the successful completion of the Project. The costs of acquiring the
Development Property and the construction of Site Improvements shall be paid by the Developer.
The City shall reimburse the Developer for the lesser of (a) $802,969, or (b) the actual costs of
acquisition of the Development Property and the construction of the Site Improvements actually
incurred and paid by the Developer relating to the Phase I Project as further provided in Section
3.3 hereof. In the event the Developer constructs the Phase II Project in accordance with the time
frame required by Section 2.2(7) the City shall reimburse the Developer for the lesser of $174,070
or the actual costs of the construction of the Site Improvements actually incurred and paid by the
Developer relating to the Phase Il Project as further provided in Section 3.3. The aggregate of
$977,039 is referred to herein as the Reimbursement Amount.

Section 3.2  Limitations on Undertaking of the City. Notwithstanding the provisions of
Section 3.1, the City shall have no obligation to the Developer under this Agreement to reimburse
the Developer for the costs identified in Section 3.1, if the City, at the time or times such payment
is to be made, is entitled under Section 4.2 to exercise any of the remedies set forth therein as a
result of an Event of Default which has not been cured.

Section 3.3  Reimbursement: TIF Note. The City shall reimburse the payments made by
the Developer under Section 3.1 for the costs of the acquisition of the Development Property and
the construction of the Site Improvements through the issuance of the City's TIF Note in
substantially the form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit B, subject to the following conditions:

(1) The TIF Note shall be dated, issued and delivered when the Developer shall have
demonstrated in writing to the reasonable satisfaction of the City that the construction of the Phase
I Project is complete and that the Developer has incurred and paid all costs of acquisition of the
Development Property and the construction of the Site Improvements associated with the Phase I
Project, as described in and limited by Section 3.1(1) and shall have submitted paid invoices for
the costs of construction of the Site Improvements associated with the Phase I Project and a title
company settlement statement or other evidence of payment of the costs of the Development
Property in an amount not less than the $802,969. In the event the Developer constructs the Phase
II Project as provided by Section 2.2(7) and provides the City with paid invoices for the
construction of the Site Improvements relating to the Phase I Project in the amount of $174,070
as required by Section 3.1(1), the principal amount of the TIF Note shall be increased by $174,070.
The Developer shall deliver the TIF Note to the City and the City shall issue a new note in the
increased principal amount.

(2) The TIF Note shall not bear interest.

(3) The principal amount of the TIF Note shall be payable solely from the Tax
Increments.

73106120v1



(4) On each Note Payment Date and subject to the provisions of the TIF Note, the City
shall pay, against the principal outstanding on the TIF Note, the Tax Increments received by the
City during the preceding 6 months. All such payments shall be applied to reduce the principal of
the TIF Note.

(5) The TIF Note shall be a special and limited obligation of the City and not a general
obligation of the City, and only Tax Increments shall be used to pay the principal of the TIF Note.

(6) The City's obligation to make payments on the TIF Note on any Note Payment Date
or any date thereafter shall be conditioned upon the requirements that: (A) there shall not at that
time be an Event of Default that has occurred and is continuing under this Agreement and (B) this
Agreement shall not have been rescinded pursuant to Section 4.2(b) hereof.

(7) The TIF Note shall be governed by and payable pursuant to the additional terms
thereof, as set forth in Exhibit B. In the event of any conflict between the terms of the TIF Note
and the terms of this Section 3.3, the terms of the TIF Note shall govern. The issuance of the TIF
Note pursuant and subject to the terms of this Agreement, and the taking by the City of such
additional actions as bond counsel for the TIF Note may require in connection therewith, are
hereby authorized and approved by the City.

Section 3.4  Compliance with Low and Moderate Income Requirements.

(1) The City and the Developer understand and agree that the Tax Increment District
will constitute a "housing district" under Section 469.174, Subd. 11 of the Tax Increment Act.
Accordingly, in compliance with Section 469.1761, Subd. 3 of the Tax Increment Act, the
Developer agrees that the Project must satisfy, or be treated as satisfying, the income requirements
for a qualified residential rental project as defined in Section 142(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.
The parties further agree that no more than 20% of the square footage of the Project may consist
of commercial, retail, or other nonresidential uses. The Developer must meet the above
requirements as follows:

(A) At least 20% of the residential units in the Project must be occupied or
available for occupancy by persons whose incomes do not exceed 50% of the County
median income; and

(B)  The limits described in clause (A) must be satisfied through the Termination
Date. Income for occupants of units described in clause (A) shall be adjusted for family
size in accordance with Section 142(d) of the Internal Revenue Code and related
regulations.

2) On or before each January 1 and July 1, commencing on July 1, 2025, the Developer
or an agent of the Developer must deliver or cause to be delivered to the City a Compliance
Certificate executed by the Developer covering the preceding six (6) months together with written
evidence satisfactory to the City of compliance with the covenants in this Section. This evidence
must include a statement of the household income of each of qualifying renter, a written
determination that each qualifying renter's household income falls within the qualifying limits of
this Section (and Section 142(d) of the Internal Revenue Code), and certification that the income
documentation is correct and accurate (and that the determination of qualification was made in

7

73106120v1



compliance with Section 142(d) of the Internal Revenue Code). The City may review, upon
request, all documentation supporting the Developer submissions and statements. In determining
compliance with this Section, the Developer must use the County median incomes for the year in
which the payment is due on the TIF Note, as promulgated by the Minnesota Housing Finance
Agency based on the area median incomes established by the United States Department of Housing
and Urban Development.

Section 3.5  Real Property Taxes. Prior to the Termination Date, the Developer shall
pay all real property taxes payable with respect to all and any parts of the Development Property
acquired and owned by it until the Developer's obligations have been assumed by any other person
pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

The Developer agrees that prior to the Termination Date:

(1) It will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the applicability of any
tax statute relating to the ad valorem property taxation of real property contained on the
Development Property determined by any tax official to be applicable to the Project or the
Developer or raise the inapplicability of any such tax statute as a defense in any proceedings with
respect to the Development Property, including delinquent tax proceedings; provided, however,
"tax statute" does not include any local ordinance or resolution levying a tax;

(2) It will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the constitutionality of
any tax statute relating to the taxation of real property contained on the Development Property
determined by any tax official to be applicable to the Project or the Developer or raise the
unconstitutionality of any such tax statute as a defense in any proceedings, including delinquent
tax proceedings with respect to the Development Property; provided, however, "tax statute" does
not include any local ordinance or resolution levying a tax;

3) It will not seek any tax deferral or abatement, either presently or prospectively
authorized under Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.1813, or any other State or federal law, of the
ad valorem property taxation of the Development Property between the date of execution of this
Agreement and the Termination Date.

(4) It will not seek a reduction in the market value as determined by the Blue Earth

County Assessor of the Project or other facilities, if any, that it constructs on the Development

Property, pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, for so long as the TIF Note remains
outstanding.

Section 3.6  Prohibition Against Transfer of Project and Assignment of Agreement. The
Developer represents and agrees that prior to the termination date of this Agreement the Developer
shall not transfer the Project or any part thereof or any interest therein, without the prior written
approval of the City. The City shall be entitled to require as conditions to any such approval that:

(1) Any proposed transferee shall have the qualifications and financial responsibility,
in the reasonable judgment of the City, necessary and adequate to fulfill the obligations undertaken
in this Agreement by the Developer.

73106120v1



2) Any proposed transferee, by instrument in writing satisfactory to the City shall, for
itself and its successors and assigns, and expressly for the benefit of the City, have expressly
assumed all of the obligations of the Developer under this Agreement and agreed to be subject to
all the conditions and restrictions to which the Developer is subject.

3) There shall be submitted to the City for review and prior written approval all
instruments and other legal documents involved in effecting the transfer of any interest in this
Agreement or the Project.

Section 3.7  Legal and Administrative Expenses. The Developer shall pay all Legal and
Administrative Expenses in excess of the initial deposit of $10,000 paid to the City by the
Developer if requested by the City.

73106120v1



ARTICLE IV.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Section4.1  Events of Default Defined. The following shall be "Events of Default"
under this Agreement and the term "Event of Default" shall mean whenever it is used in this
Agreement any one or more of the following events:

(1)  Failure by the Developer to timely pay any ad valorem real property taxes and
special assessments levied against the Development Property and all public utility or other City
payments due and owing with respect to the Development Property when due and payable.

2) Failure by the Developer to cause the construction of the Project to be completed
pursuant to the terms, conditions and limitations of this Agreement.

3) Failure of the Developer to observe or perform any other covenant, condition,
obligation or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement.

4) The holder of any mortgage on the Development Property or any improvements
thereon, or any portion thereof, commences foreclosure proceedings as a result of any default under
the applicable mortgage documents.

&) If the Developer shall

(A) file any petition in bankruptcy or for any reorganization, arrangement,
composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief under the United
States Bankruptcy Act of 1978, as amended or under any similar federal or state law; or

(B)  make an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or

(C)  admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due;
or

(D)  be adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent; or if a petition or answer proposing
the adjudication of the Developer as bankrupt or its reorganization under any present or
future federal bankruptcy act or any similar federal or state law shall be filed in any court
and such petition or answer shall not be discharged or denied within sixty (60) days after
the filing thereof; or a receiver, trustee or liquidator of the Developer, or of the Project, or
part thereof, shall be appointed in any proceeding brought against the Developer, and shall
not be discharged within sixty (60) days after such appointment, or if the Developer, shall
consent to or acquiesce in such appointment.

Section 4.2  Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default referred to in Section
4.1 occurs and is continuing, the City, as specified below, may take any one or more of the
following actions after the giving of thirty (30) days' written notice to the Developer, but only if
the Event of Default has not been cured within said thirty (30) days:

10

73106120v1



(1) The City may suspend its performance under this Agreement and the TIF Note until
it receives assurances from the Developer, deemed adequate by the City, that the Developer will
cure its default and continue its performance under this Agreement.

(2) The City may cancel and rescind the Agreement and the TIF Note.

3) The City may take any action, including legal or administrative action, in law or
equity, which may appear necessary or desirable to enforce performance and observance of any
obligation, agreement, or covenant of the Developer under this Agreement.

Section 4.3  No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the
City is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each and every
such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this
Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. No delay or omission to
exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall
be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to
time and as often as may be deemed expedient.

Section 4.4 No Implied Waiver. In the event any agreement contained in this
Agreement should be breached by any party and thereafter waived by any other party, such waiver
shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other
concurrent, previous or subsequent breach hereunder.

Section 4.5  Indemnification of City.

(1) The Developer (a) releases the City and its governing body members, officers,
agents, including the independent contractors, consultants and legal counsel, servants and
employees (collectively, the "Indemnified Parties") from, (b) covenants and agrees that the
Indemnified Parties shall not be liable for, and (c) agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
Indemnified Parties against, any claim, cause of action, suit or liability for loss or damage to
property or any injury to or death of any person occurring at or about or resulting from any defect
in the Project or on the Development Property.

(2) Except for any willful misrepresentation or any willful or wanton misconduct of
the Indemnified Parties, the Developer agrees to protect and defend the Indemnified Parties, now
and forever, and further agrees to hold the aforesaid harmless from any claim, demand, suit, action
or other proceeding whatsoever by any person or entity whatsoever arising or purportedly arising
from the actions or inactions of the Developer (or other persons acting on its behalf or under its
direction or control) under this Agreement, or the transactions contemplated hereby or the
acquisition, construction, installation, ownership, and operation of the Project; provided, that this
indemnification shall not apply to the warranties made or obligations undertaken by the City in
this Agreement or to any actions undertaken by the City which are not contemplated by this
Agreement but shall, in any event and without regard to any fault on the part of the City, apply to
any pecuniary loss or penalty (including interest thereon from the date the loss is incurred or
penalty is paid by the City at a rate equal to the Prime Rate) as a result of the Developer operating
the Project so that the Tax Increment District does not qualify or ceases to qualify as a "housing

11

73106120v1



district" under Section 469.174, Subdivision 11, of the Act or to violate limitations as to the use of
Tax Increments as set forth in Section 469.176, Subdivision 4d.

3) All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the City
contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and
obligations of the City and not of any governing body member, officer, agent, servant or employee

of the City.

1%/

73106120v1



ARTICLE V.

DEVELOPER'S OPTION TO TERMINATE AGREEMENT

Section 5.1  The Developer's Option to Terminate. This Agreement may be terminated
by the Developer, if (i) the Developer is in compliance with all material terms of this Agreement
and no Event of Default has occurred; and (ii) the City fails to comply with any material term of
this Agreement, and, after written notice by the Developer of such failure, the City has failed to
cure such noncompliance within ninety (90) days of receipt of such notice, or, if such
noncompliance cannot reasonably be cured by the City within ninety (90) days, of receipt of such
notice, the City has not provided assurances, reasonably satisfactory to the Developer, that such
noncompliance will be cured as soon as reasonably possible.

Section 5.2 Action to Terminate. Termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section
5.1 must be accomplished by written notification by the Developer in the City within sixty (60)
days after the date when such option to terminate my first be exercised. A failure by the Developer
to terminate this Agreement within such period constitutes a waiver by the Developer of its right
to terminate this Agreement due to such occurrence or event.

Section 5.3  Effect of Termination. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this
Article V, this Agreement shall be from such date forward null and void and of no further effect;
provided, however, the termination of this Agreement shall not affect the rights of either party to
institute any action, claim or demand for damages suffered as a result of breach or default of the
terms of this Agreement by the other party, or to recover amounts which had accrued and become
due and payable as of the date of such termination. Upon termination of this Agreement pursuant
to this Article V, the Developer shall be free to proceed with the Project at its own expense and
without regard to the provisions of this Agreement; provided, however, that the City shall have no
further obligations to the Developer with respect to reimbursement of the expenses set forth in
Section 3.3, or to make any further payments on the TIF Note.

13

73106120v1



ARTICLE VI.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

Section 6.1  Restrictions on Use. The Developer agrees for itself, its successors and
assigns and every successor in interest to the Development Property, or any part thereof, that
during the term of this Agreement the Developer and such successors and assigns shall operate, or
cause to be operated, the Project as a multi-family rental housing project and shall devote the
Development Property to, and in accordance with, the uses specified in this Agreement.

Section 6.2  Conflicts of Interest. No member of the governing body or other official of
the City shall have any financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement, the Development
Property or the Project, or any contract, agreement or other transaction contemplated to occur or
be undertaken thereunder or with respect thereto, nor shall any such member of the governing body
or other official participate in any decision relating to the Agreement which affects his or her
personal interests or the interests of any corporation, partnership or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested. No member, official or employee of the City shall be personally
liable to the City in the event of any default or breach by the Developer or successors or on any
obligations under the terms of this Agreement.

Section 6.3  Titles of Articles and Sections. Any titles of the several parts, articles and
sections of the Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded
in construing or interpreting any of its provisions.

Section 6.4  Notices and Demands. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this
Agreement, a notice, demand or other communication under this Agreement by any party to any
other shall be sufficiently given or delivered if it is dispatched by registered or certified mail,
postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered personally, and

(1) in the case of the Developer is addressed to or delivered personally to:

Fox Meadow Townhomes, LLC
Attention:

705 Parkway Avenue

Eagle Lake, MN 56024

(2) in the case of the City is addressed to or delivered personally to the City at:

City of Eagle Lake, Minnesota
Eagle Lake City Hall
Attention: City Administrator

705 Parkway Avenue
PO Box 159
Eagle Lake, MN 56024

14

73106120v1



with a copy to:

Taft Stettinius & Hollister LLP
Attention: Mary Ippel

2200 IDS Center

80 South 8™ Street
Minneapolis, MN 55402

or at such other address with respect to any such party as that party may, from time to time,
designate in writing and forward to the other, as provided in this Section.

Section 6.5  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Section 6.6 ~ Law Governing. This Agreement will be governed and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 6.7  Expiration. This Agreement shall expire on the Termination Date.

Section 6.8  Provisions Surviving Rescission or Expiration. Sections 4.5 and 4.6 shall
survive any rescission, termination or expiration of this Agreement with respect to or arising out
of any event, occurrence or circumstance existing prior to the date thereof.

Section 6.9  Assignability of TIF Note. The TIF Note may only be assigned pursuant to
the terms of the TIF Note and shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Section 6.10 Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by written agreement
approved by the City and the Developer.

15

73106120v1



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its
name and on its behalf and the Developer has executed this Agreement in its names and on its
behalf, on or as of the date first above written.

CITY OF EAGLE LAKE, MINNESOTA

By

Its Mayor

By

Its Administrator

This is a signature page to the Development Agreement by and between the City of Eagle Lake
and Fox Meadow Townhomes, LLC.

S-1

73106120v1



Fox Meadow Townhomes, LLC

By
Its

This is a signature page to the Development Agreement by and between the City of Eagle Lake
and Fox Meadow Townhomes, LLC.

73106120v1



EXHIBIT A

Description of Development Property

The legal description or parcel identification number(s) of development property, located in the
City of Eagle Lake, Blue Earth County, Minnesota are as follows:

R121018400013

A-1

73106120v1



EXHIBIT B

Form of TIF Note

No. R-1 $

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF MINNESOTA
COUNTY OF BLUE EARTH
CITY OF EAGLE LAKE

TAX INCREMENT REVENUE NOTE
(SCHROM APARTMENT PROJECT)

The City of Eagle Lake, Minnesota (the "City"), hereby acknowledges itself to be indebted
and, for value received, hereby promises to pay the amounts hereinafter described (the "Payment
Amounts") to Fox Meadow Townhomes, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company, individually
(the "Developer" or the "Registered Owner"), but only in the manner, at the times, from the sources
of revenue, and to the extent hereinafter provided.

The principal amount of this Note shall equal from time to time the principal amount stated
above, as reduced to the extent that such principal installments shall have been paid in whole or in
part pursuant to the terms hereof; provided that the sum of the principal amount listed above shall
in no event exceed $802,969 if only the Phase I Project is constructed, or $977,039, if both the
Phase I Project and the Phase II Project are constructed as provided in that certain Amended and
Restated Development Agreement, dated as of , 2024, as the same may be amended from
time to time (the "Development Agreement"), by and between the City and the Developer. This
Note bears no interest.

The amounts due under this Note shall be payable on August 1, 2025, and on each February
1 and August 1 thereafter to and including February 1, 2039, or, if the first should not be a Business
Day (as defined in the Development Agreement), the next succeeding Business Day (the "Payment
Dates"). On each Payment Date the City shall pay by check or draft mailed to the person that was
the Registered Owner of this Note at the close of the last business day of the City preceding such
Payment Date an amount equal to the Tax Increments (hereinafter defined) received by the City
during the six month period preceding such Payment Date. All payments made by the City under
this Note shall be applied to principal.

The Payment Amounts due hereon shall be payable solely from 90% of tax increments (the
"Tax Increments") derived from the Development Property (as defined in the Development
Agreement) within the City's Tax Increment Financing District No. 3-2 (the "Tax Increment
District") within its Development District No. 1 which are paid to the City and which the City is
entitled to retain pursuant to the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.174 through
469.1794, as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to time (the "Tax Increment
Act"). This Note shall terminate and be of no further force and effect following the last Payment
Date defined above, on any date upon which the City shall have terminated the Development

B-1

73106120v1



Agreement under Section 4.2(2) thereof or the Developer shall have terminated the Development
Agreement under Article V thereof, on the date the Tax Increment District is terminated, or on the
date that all principal payable hereunder shall have been paid in full, whichever occurs earliest.

The City makes no representation or covenant, expressed or implied, that the Tax
Increments will be sufficient to pay, in whole or in part, the amounts which are or may become
due and payable hereunder.

The City's payment obligations hereunder shall be further conditioned on the fact that no
Event of Default under the Development Agreement shall have occurred and be continuing at the
time payment is otherwise due hereunder, but such unpaid amounts shall become payable if said
Event of Default shall thereafter have been cured; and, further, if pursuant to the occurrence of an
Event of Default under the Development Agreement the City elects to cancel and rescind the
Development Agreement, the City shall have no further debt or obligation under this Note
whatsoever. Reference is hereby made to all of the provisions of the Development Agreement,
including without limitation Section 3.3 thereof, for a fuller statement of the rights and obligations
of the City to pay the principal of this Note, and said provisions are hereby incorporated into this
Note as though set out in full herein.

This Note is a special, limited revenue obligation and not a general obligation of the City
and is payable by the City only from the sources and subject to the qualifications stated or
referenced herein. This Note is not a general obligation of the City of Eagle Lake, Minnesota and
neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing powers of the City are pledged to the payment of the
principal of this Note and no property or other asset of the City, save and except the above-
referenced Tax Increments, is or shall be a source of payment of the City's obligations hereunder.

This Note is issued by the City in aid of financing a project pursuant to and in full
conformity with the Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota, including the Tax Increment
Act.

This Note is subject to prepayment in immediately available funds on any date at the option
of the City, in whole or in part and without penalty.

This Note may be assigned only with the consent of the City which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld. In order to assign the Note, the assignee shall surrender the same to the
City either in exchange for a new fully registered note or for transfer of this Note on the registration
records for the Note maintained by the City. Each permitted assignee shall take this Note subject
to the foregoing conditions and subject to all provisions stated or referenced herein.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND RECITED that all acts, conditions, and things required
by the Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota to be done, to have happened, and to be
performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Note have been done, have happened, and have
been performed in regular and due form, time, and manner as required by law; and that this Note,
together with all other indebtedness of the City outstanding on the date hereof and on the date of
its actual issuance and delivery, does not cause the indebtedness of the City to exceed any
constitutional or statutory limitation thereon.

73106120v1



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, City of Eagle Lake, Minnesota, by its City Council, has caused
this Note to be executed by the manual signatures of its Mayor and Administrator and has caused
this Note to be dated as of ,202 .

Administrator Mayor

DO NOT EXECUTE UNTIL A SETTLEMENT STATEMENT OR OTHER EVIDENCE
OF PAYMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF THE DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY AND PAID
INVOICES FOR THE SITE IMPROVEMENTS ARE GIVEN TO THE CITY - REFER TO
SECTION 3.3(1).

B-3

73106120v1



CERTIFICATION OF REGISTRATION

It is hereby certified that the foregoing Note was registered in the name of Fox Meadow
Townhomes, LLC, and that, at the request of the Registered Owner of this Note, the undersigned
has this day registered the Note in the name of such Registered Owner, as indicated in the
registration blank below, on the books kept by the undersigned for such purposes.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF DATE OF SIGNATURE OF CITY
REGISTERED OWNER REGISTRATION ADMINISTRATOR

Fox Meadow Townhomes, LLC
Attn:

705 Parkway Avenue

Eagle Lake, MN 56204

B-4

73106120v1



EXHIBIT C

Site Improvements

Landscaping, including irrigation
Foundations and Footings
Grading/earthwork

Engineering

Survey

Environmental Testing

Soil Borings

Site Preparation

Onsite Utilities

Storm Water/Ponding

Outdoor Lighting

Onsite Road, Curb, Gutter, Driveway, Sidewalk and Streetscape Improvements
Parking

73106120v1



EXHIBIT D

Compliance Certificate

The undersigned Fox Meadow Townhomes, LLC, does hereby certify that as of the date of
this Certificate and for the previous six (6) months prior to the execution of this Certificate not less
than 20% of the residential units in the Schrom Apartment Project located at
in Eagle Lake, Minnesota (the "Project") were occupied by

individuals whose income is 50% or less of the Blue Earth County median income.

, 202

Dated this day of
Fox Meadow Townhomes, LLC

By

Its

[Attach income verification required by Section 3.4.]

D-1

73106120v1



EXTRACT OF MINUTES OF MEETING
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF EAGLE LAKE, MINNESOTA
HELD: July 25, 2024
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a special meeting of the City Council of the City

of Eagle Lake, Blue Earth County, Minnesota, was duly called and held at the City Hall in said
City on July 25, 2024, at 5:00 P.M.

The following members were present:

and the following were absent:

Member introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption:

RESOLUTION NO. ] }'LL’\ - %Gl

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AMENDED AND RESTATED
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

A. WHEREAS, the City of Eagle Lake, Minnesota (the" City") and Fox Meadow
Townhome, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company (the "Developer") entered into a
Development Agreement, dated as of April 4, 2022 (the "Development Agreement”) in
connection with the construction of a 64-unit multifamily rental project located in the City (the
"Project"); and

B. WHEREAS, the City and the Developer amended the Development Agreement
on January 9, 2022 as provided in the First Amendment to Development Agreement.

C. WHEREAS, the City and the Developer intend to amend and restate the
Development Agreement as provided in the Amended and Restated Development Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Eagle Lake,
Minnesota, as follows:

1. The City Council hereby approves the Amended and Restated Development
Agreement in substantially the form submitted, and the Mayor and City Administrator are hereby
authorized and directed to execute the Amended and Restated Development Agreement on
behalf of the City.

2, The approval hereby given to the Amended and Restated Development
Agreement includes approval of such additional details therein as may be necessary and
“appropriate and such modifications thereof, deletions therefrom and additions thereto as may be
necessary and appropriate and approved by the City officials authorized by this resolution to

75574436v1



execute the Amended and Restated Development Agreement. The execution of the Amended
and Restated Development Agreement by the appropriate officer or officers of the City shall be
conclusive evidence of the approval of the Amended and Restated Development Agreement in
accordance with the terms hereof.

The motion for adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by member
and, after full discussion thereof, and upon a vote being taken thereof, the
following voted in favor thereof:

and the following voted against same:

Adopted this 25" day of July, 2024.

Mayor

Attest:
City Administrator




STATE OF MINNESOTA
COUNTY OF BLUE EARTH
CITY OF EAGLE LAKE

I, the undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting City Administrator of the City of
Eagle Lake, Minnesota, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have carefully compared the attached
and foregoing extract of minutes with the original minutes of a meeting of the City Council of
the City held on the date therein indicated, which are on file and of record in my office, and the
same is a full, true and complete transcript therefrom insofar as the same relates to a Resolution
Authorizing Execution of a Amended and Restated Development Agreement.

WITNESS my hand as such City Administrator of the City of Eagle Lake, Minnesota this

25" day of July, 2024.

City Administrator



W
EAGLE LAKE

WHERE OPPORTUNITY SOARS

705 Parkway Ave, PO Box 159, Eagle Lake, MN 56024
(507) 257-3218 Phone (507) 257-3220 Fax

July 25, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor Norton and City Council

From: Jennifer J. Bromeland, City Administrator

Re: Street and Utility Reconstruction Projects - Capital Improvement Planning and Financial
Analysis

Shannon Sweeney with David Drown Associates and Brian Sarff with Bolton and Menk will be
at the meeting to talk about capital improvement planning (CIP) for street and utility
reconstruction projects and potential impacts to property taxes and utility rates. Attached you
will find a CIP financial analysis.

Discussion should ensue.

e pmneland

Jennifer ¥, Bromeland
City Administrator




Cologne Office:

Q D DA 10555 Orchard Road

Cologne, MN 55322
David Drown Associates, Inc. Phone: (952) 356-2992

Public Finance Advisors shannon@daviddrown.com

February 20, 2024

City of Eagle Lake

Attn: Jennifer Bromeland, City Administrator
PO Box 159

Eagle Lake, MN 56024

RE: 2025 Street & Utility Reconstruction Project

Dear Administrator Bromeland:

Per our discussion | have looked at constructing projects 2-7 on the attached Bolton & Menk CIP Plan
Update in 2025 to determine the impacts to property taxes and utility rates. The purpose of this analysis is

to determine if the efficiencies of bidding those projects as a single project is affordable.

Based on the cost estimates provided on the attachment, | have assumed the following project costs and
sources of financing.

Project Cost:
Construction/Engineering/Contingency $6,049,000.00
Underwriting 78,500.00
Finance & Legal 55,750.00
Rating Fee 19,500.00
Capitalized Interest 95,210.63
TOTAL PROJECT COST: $6,297,960.63

The funding sources to be utilized to finance project costs are summarized below:

General Obligation Bonds $6,280,000.00
Construction Fund Earnings 17,960.63
TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES: $6,297,960.63

Payment and Revenue Requirements:

The City of Eagle Lake would be required to pledge a tax levy, special assessments, and utility system
revenues for the repayment of this bond issue as proposed. Payments average approximately $454,000
per year over the 20-year term at an assumed interest rate of 4%. Special assessments are expected to
total $801,000. Based on the structure of the bond issue, | have assumed the assessments would be
levied over a 20-year term at an interest rate of 5% with first collection to occur in 2026.

Tax Levy Impact:

The proposed tax levy to support the street reconstruction activity is estimated to be approximately
$200,000 per year for the bond issue. As the 2023 tax levy was $973,272, this represents an
approximately 21% increase to the 2023 tax levy.



Water Utility Impact:

The water utility will be contributing approximately $90,000 per year toward debt service for utility
reconstruction. Some capacity for new debt is available in 2029 after the 2021 refunding bonds are
retired. Assuming a few years of deficit spending, | am projecting 6% increases each year through 2027.
This means that a 5,000 gallon customer that was paying 32.87 in 2023, would be paying 41.49 by 2027.

Sewer Utility Impact:

The sewer utility will be contributing approximately $70,000 per year toward debt service for utility
reconstruction. Some capacity for new debt is available in 2029 after the 2023 refunding bonds are
retired. Like the water utility, assuming a few years of deficit spending, | am projecting 4% increases each
year through 2029. This means that a 5,000 gallon customer that was paying 45.03 in 2023, would be
paying 56.98 by 2029.

Storm Water:

Approximately $50,000 in annual debt service for the project is attributed to the storm water utility. As the
storm water fund is already in deficit, at project implementation | would recommend increasing the fee for a
typical residential customer to $11.30 per month. This means that a typical customer that was paying
$3.63 for storm water in 2023, would be paying $11.30 by 2025.

Other Sources of Financing:

USDA-Rural Development offers loan and grant programs for utility and street projects. Participating in
their programs would likely delay the project for at least another year. Based on an initial analysis it is
likely that the City would not be grant eligible. Loans for utility projects have recently been provided over a
40-year term at 2.25% interest. Loans for street projects are typically provided over a 20-year term at
approximately 3.75%.

The Minnesota Public Facilities Authority (PFA) also provides loans for utility projects. Funds are available
on a competitive basis and the project would be scored against other Minnesota projects based on need
and addressing issues like inflow and infiltration and phosphorus reduction. Loans are typically provided
over a 20-year term at 1.5%. Participating in that program (if competitive) would likely only include the
water and sanitary sewer portions of the project. PFA funding would require some additional expense and
time in order to determine eligibility and competitiveness.

In recent history more Minnesota communities have been seeking State Appropriations (bonding bill
grants) for projects like this. Again, seeking an appropriation may delay the project as only costs incurred
after the effective date of the appropriation can typically be paid with state appropriation funding.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions regarding the attached materials. Thank you for your time and
consideration.

Sincerely,

A

€

8
B

Shannon Sweeney
David Drown Associates, Inc.



BOLTON COST BREAKDOWN

& MEN K 2024 Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan Update
Real People. Real Solutions. City of Eagle Lake, MN
H:\ELAK\_General\_Capital Improvement Plan\2024\[2024-01 CIP Cost Estimates.xlsx]Cost Breakdown Date: 1/29/2024

ESTIMATED PROJECT COST

PROJECT
1D PROJECT NAME % Est. Special
did TOTAL Street Storm Sanitary Water Other

Assessments

Valley Lane - Cedar Path WM Looping $234,000 S0 S0 $0 $234,000 S0 S0
Diane Drive Reconstruction $370,000 $175,800 $37,300 $72,500 $84,400 S0 ($45,000)
3 Le Sueur Avenue Reconstruction $2,333,000 $1,370,400 $202,500 $343,000 $417,100 S0 ($300,000)
4 Maywood Avenue Reconstruction $1,455,000 $754,800 $251,800 $183,300 $265,100 S0 ($225,000)
b Second Street Reconstruction $735,000 $349,900 $72,500 $108,500 $204,100 S0 ($63,000)
6 Plainview Street Reconstruction $696,000 $401,100 $37,300 $123,500 $134,100 S0 ($105,000)
7 Third Street Reconstruction $460,000 $257,400 $41,800 $78,700 $82,100 S0 ($63,000)
Water Treatment Facility $14,153,000 $0 S0 $0 | $14,153,000 S0 $0
B | ey street - 211th Street $397,000 $397,000 $0 50 $0 $0 $0
Pedestrian Connection
TOTALS $20,833,000 $3,706,400 $643,200 $909,500 $15,573,900 $0 ($801,000)|




City of Eagle Lake, Minnesota Preliminary
$6,280,000
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2025A
Uses of Funds Bond Details
2025 Street & Utility Reconstruction 6,049,000.00 Set Sale Date 3/3/2025
Other - Sale Date 4712025
Total Project Costs 6,049,000.00 Dated Date 5/1/2025
Underwriter's Discount Allowance 1.250% 78,500.00 Closing Date 5112025
Unused Underwriter's Discount Allowance - 1st Interest Payment 2/1/2026
Fiscal Fee 30,000.00 Proceeds spent by: 1213172026
Bond Counsel 22,000.00 to Dated Date
Pay Agent/Registrar 1,250.00 Purchase Price 6,201,500.00
Printing & Misc 2,500.00 Net Interest Cost 3,069,094.38
Rating Agency Fee 19,500.00 Net Effective Rate 3.9515%
Capitalized Interest 95,210.63 Average Coupon 3.8504%
Accrued Interest - Yield TBD
Rounding - Average Life 12.3678
Call Option 212032
Purchaser Preliminary
Sources of Funds. Bond Counsel Taft
Bond Issue 6,280,000.00 Pay Agent U.S. Bank, N.A.
Construction Fund Earnings 17,960.63 Tax Status Tax Exempt, Bank Qualified
Cash Contribution - Continuing Disclosure TBD
6,297,960.63 Rebate 24-Month Spend Down
Statutory Authority M.S. 429, 444, & 475
Payment Schedule & Cashflow
Payment Schedule Pledged Revenues Account Balances
12-Month Interest Payment plus 5% Collection Tax Water Storm Sewer  Sanitary Sewer Special Surplus Account
Period ending Principal Rate Interest Total Coverage Year Levy Revenues Revenues Revenues (deficit) Balance
5/1/2025 - - - Capitalized & accrued interest > 95,211
2/1/2026 - 0.00% 171,857 171,856.88 175,689 2025 - 34,606 19,315 26,558 - (95,211) -
21112027 225,000 3.35% 229,143 454,142.50 476,850 2026 200,271 91,291 50,953 70,061 64,274 - =
2/1/2028 235,000 3.20% 221,605 456,605.00 479,435 2027 201,124 92,036 51,369 70,632 64,274 = -
2/1/2029 240,000 3.15% 214,085 454,085.00 476,789 2028 202,006 90,519 50,522 69,468 64,274 = =
21/2030 250,000 3.10% 206,525 456,525.00 479,351 2029 202,791 91,283 50,949 70,055 64,274 - -
2/1/2031 260,000 3.10% 198,775 458,775.00 481,714 2030 203,484 92,001 51,349 70,605 64,274 = =
2/1/2032 270,000 3.10% 180,715 460,715.00 483,751 2031 204,014 92,649 51,711 71,103 64,274 = -
2/1/2033 270,000 3.10% 182,345 452,345.00 474,962 2032 199,131 90,969 50,774 69,814 64,274 - &
2/1/2034 280,000 3.15% 173,975 453,975.00 476,674 2033 199,499 91,547 51,096 70,257 64,274 = &
2/1/2035 290,000 3.20% 165,155 455,155.00 477,913 2034 199,622 92,027 51,364 70,625 64,274 - #
21112036 300,000 3.30% 155,875 455,875.00 478,669 2035 199,496 92,406 51,576 70916 64,274 = -
2/1/2037 310,000 3.40% 145,975 455,975.00 478,774 2036 199,029 92,652 51,713 71,105 64,274 = -
2/1/2038 315,000 3.50% 135,435 450,435.00 472,957 2037 198,210 90,503 50,513 69,456 64,274 - -
2/1/2039 330,000 3.75% 124,410 454,410.00 477,131 2038 202,279 90,548 50,539 69,491 64,274 - =:
2/1/2040 345,000 3.85% 112,035 457,035.00 479,887 2039 200,244 92,608 51,688 71,071 64,274 - =
212041 355,000 3.95% 98,753 453,752.50 476,440 2040 197,814 92171 51,445 70,736 64,274 = -
2/112042 370,000 4.05% 84,730 454,730.00 477,467 2041 200,226 91,575 51,112 70,279 64,274 =
2/112043 385,000 4.15% 69,745 454,745.00 477,482 2042 202,008 90,816 50,688 69,696 64,274 = =
2/1/2044 400,000 4.25% 53,768 453,767.50 476,456 2043 197,880 92,146 51,430 70,716 64,274 - =
2/1/2045 415,000 4.30% 36,768 451,767.50 474,356 2044 198,572 90,949 50,762 69,798 64,274 - -
2/1/2046 435,000 4.35% 18,923 453,922.50 476,619 2045 198,688 91,872 51,278 70,507 64,274 =
6,280,000 2,990,594 9,270,594.38 9,729,364 4,006,396 1867177 1,042,145 1,432,949 1,285.486 =

David Drown Associates, Inc.

Cash Flow ~ Preliminary



City of Eagle Lake, Minnesota
Tax Impact Analysis

Debt Service Levy: $200,000
2023 Tax Levy $973,272
Projected Levy $1,173,272
Pay 2023 Net Tax Capacity $2,635,260
2023 Tax Rate 36.93%
Projected Rate 44.52%
Assessor's Market Value Projected
(Homestead Residential Property)| Current City Tax: | Projected City Tax: Increase:
S 100,000 | $ 230.64 | S 278.04 | S 47.40
S 200,000 | S 633.21 | S 763.33 | S 130.12
S 300,000 | $ 1,035.78 | $ 1,24862 | S 212.84
S 400,000 | $ 1,438.34 | S 1,733.91 | $ 295.57
Assessor's Market Value Projected
(Commercial/Industrial Property) | Current City Tax: | Projected City Tax: Increase:
S 100,000.00 | $ 553.99 | $ 667.83 | $ 113.84
S 500,000.00 | 3,416.27 | S 4,11829 | S 702.02
S 1,000,000.00 | $ 7,109.54 | $ 8,570.50 | $ 1,460.96




W
EAGLE LAKE

WHERE OPPORTUNITY SOARS

705 Parkway Ave, PO Box 159, Eagle Lake, MN 56024
(507) 257-3218 Phone (507) 257-3220 Fax

July 25, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor Norton and City Council
From: Jennifer J. Bromeland, City Administrator
Re: Water Meters

Attached is pricing from Metering and Technology Solutions for water meters totaling
$16,174.00. Public Works Director Andrew Hartman recommends that additional water meters
be purchased now to replenish the water meter inventory which is low.

The water meters will be purchased using 601 funds and reimbursed when water meters are
purchased by utility customers.

A motion is needed to approve the purchase of water meters from Metering and Technology
Solutions.

%uﬁg@n%@md@/@
Jennifef J. Bromeland
City Administrator




Metering And
METERING ano Technology Solutions

S TECHNOLOGY (2016 Riverwood Dr

Burnsville MN 55337
SOLUTIONS United States

Customer TOTAL

Eagle Lake, City of
P.0O. Box 159

Eagle Lake MN 56024
United States

Expires Sales Rep
9/26/2024 Lee Martin

Quantity Item

48 M25BZ3/4BARE

3/4" M25 Low Lead Bronze Bare Meter; Piggyback Label
48 UG25GAL8DHREINTORNME

Model 25 Gallon 8-Dial HRE; Integral; OrionME; Torx Seal Screw
100 CNAYBZ3/4X2-1/2CONN

3/4" Low Lead Straight Meter Couplings with Wire Hole & Gasket

Estimate
#EST2529

6/28/2024

$16,174.00

Expires: 9/26/2024

Rate Amount

$75.00 $3,600.00
$238.00 $11,424.00
$11.50 $1,150.00
Subtotal $16,174.00

Tax Total (0%) $0.00
Total $16,174.00

10of1



W

EAGLE LAKE

WHERE OPPORTUNITY SOARS

705 Parkway Ave, PO Box 159, Eagle Lake, MN 56024
(507) 257-3218 Phone (507) 257-3220 Fax

July 25, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor Norton and City Council
From: Jennifer J. Bromeland, City Administrator
Re: Work Session to Discuss Cannabis Ordinance

The Minnesota Office of Cannabis Management (OCM) has issued a guide for local
governments on adult-use cannabis, a copy of which is attached. The guide serves as a general
overview of Minnesota’s new adult-use cannabis law, and how local governments can expect to
be involved. As of the guide’s date of publication, state regulations governing the adult-use
cannabis market have not yet been published. Minnesota’s new adult-use cannabis law permits
the personal use, possession, and transportation of cannabis by those 21 years of age and older,
and allows licensed businesses to conduct cultivation, manufacturing, transport, delivery, and
sale of cannabis and cannabis products.

Local governments in Minnesota have various means of oversight over the cannabis market, as
provided by the adult-use cannabis law. Local governments may not issue outright bans on
cannabis business, or limit operations in a manner beyond what is provided by state law.

According to Chapter 342, state law does not restrict how a local government conducts its zoning
designations for cannabis businesses, except that they may prohibit the operation of a cannabis
business within 1,000 feet of a school, or 500 feet of a day care, residential treatment facility, or
an attraction within a public park that is regularly used by minors, including playgrounds and
athletic fields.

Local governments play a critical role in the licensing process, serving as a near-final approval
check on cannabis businesses nearing the awarding of a state license for operations. A local unit
of government must certify that an applicant with preliminary approval has achieved compliance
with local zoning ordinances prior to the licensee receiving final approval from OCM to
commence operations.

As authorized in Chapter 342, a local government may adopt a local ordinance regarding
cannabis businesses. At the present time, the City of Eagle Lake adopted an interim ordinance

that is in effect until January 1, 2025. This allows the City time to develop a cannabis ordinance.

City Attorney Chris Kennedy will be at the meeting to discuss developing a cannabis ordinance

City Administrator



MY MINNesoOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT

A Guide for Local Governments

on Adult-Use Cannabis

Version 1.3
IinAdatad lahe 1T 2N2A




Table of Contents

INErodUCEION eeeeeeecreeeccneecncccnsessonsesssssesssssssssssessossonss 3

AbBout OCM .....uuecueeeeceecccucecvesccnscsnccssssssssssssssssssssssons 4

Cannabis License Types .....cceeeueeeuerereseresescssssassssaens 5

Adult-Use Cannabis Law ........ccceccueeesceecssnccsossscssssosees 7
Cannabis Licensing Process..........ccoceeeeuereevcsacseee. Gcctist 8
General AUthorities .......ccccceeceessenccssvscssscsssssssssssssssses 10
Zoning and Land Use.............ccoueeueeueruererecrerereerecnecne 12
Local Approval Process .........ceceeeeeueueesessssssssssssssssnse 15
Inspections and Compliance Checks ........................ 18
Municipal Cannabis Stores .........ceeeeeeseuscessssssssosacs 19
Creating Your Local Ordinance ..........cceceuererueuennnees 20

Additional ReSOUICeS ceueueeeeeveseevssseseesesosssessssssesssoesones 21



Introduction

This guide serves as a general overview of Minnesota’s new adult-use cannabis law, and
how local governments can expect to be involved. The guide also provides important
information about Minnesota’s new Office of Cannabis Management (OCM), and the
office’s structure, roles, and responsibilities. While medical cannabis continues to play an
important role in the state’s cannabis environment, this guide is primarily focused on the

adult-use cannabis law and marketplace.

The following pages outline the variety of cannabis business licenses that will be issued,
provide a broad summary of important aspects of the adult-use cannabis law, and cover a
wide range of expectations and authorities that relate to local governments. This guide also
provides best practices and important requirements for developing a local cannabis

ordinance.

Chapter 342 of Minnesota law
was established by the State \ ‘ Ij
Legislature in 2023 and was L__-‘m
updated in 2024. Mentions of L_T,f—ﬁ

“adult-use cannabis law” or “the

law” throughout this guide refer
to Chapter 342 and the changes

made to it.

As of this guide’s date of J_H |

publication, state regulations

governing the adult-use ]

cannabis market have not yet

been published —this document

will be updated when such

regulations become effective.

This guide is not a substitute for legal advice, nor does it seek to provide legal advice. Local governments and

municipal officials seeking legal advice should consult an attorney.

MY MinNesoOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT



About OCM

Minnesota’s Office of Cannabis Management is the state regulatory office created to
oversee the implementation and regulation of the adult-use cannabis market, the medical
cannabis market, and the consumer hemp industry. Housed within OCM are the Division
of Medical Cannabis (effective July 1, 2024), which operates the medical cannabis
program, and the Division of Social Equity, which promotes development, stability, and
safety in communities that have experienced a disproportionate, negative impact from

cannabis prohibition and usage.

MY MINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT

OCM, through Chapter 342, is tasked with establishing rules and policy and exercising its
regulatory authority over the Minnesota cannabis industry. In its duties, OCM is mandated

to:

* Promote public health and welfare.

¢ Protect public safety.

¢ Eliminate the illicit market for cannabis flower and cannabis products.
* Meet the market demand for cannabis flower and cannabis products.
* Promote a craft industry for cannabis flower and cannabis products.

* Prioritize growth and recovery in communities that have experienced a

disproportionate, negative impact from cannabis prohibition.

OCM governs the application and licensing process for cannabis and hemp businesses,
specific requirements for each type of license and their respective business activities, and
conducts enforcement and inspection activities across the Minnesota cannabis and hemp

industries.

MY minnNesoTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




License Types

Minnesota law allows for 13 different types of business licenses, each fulfilling a unique role
in the cannabis and hemp supply chain. In addition to license types below, OCM will also
issue endorsements to license holders to engage in specific activities, including producing,

manufacturing, and sale of medical cannabis for patients.

Microbusiness
Microbusinesses may cultivate cannabis and manufacture cannabis products and hem

Y P P
products, and package such products for sale to customers or another licensed cannabis

business. Microbusiness may also operate a single retail location.

Mezzobusiness

Mezzobusinesses may cultivate cannabis and manufacture cannabis products and hem
Y P P
products, and package such products for sale to customers or another licensed cannabis

business. Mezzobusiness may also operate up to three retail locations.

Cultivator

Cultivators may cultivate cannabis and package such cannabis for sale to another licensed

cannabis business.

Manufacturer
Manufacturers may manufacture cannabis products and hemp products, and package such

products for sale to a licensed cannabis retailer.

Retailer

Retailers may sell immature cannabis plants and seedlings, cannabis, cannabis products,

hemp products, and other products authorized by law to customers and patients.

Wholesaler

Wholesalers may purchase and/or sell immature cannabis plants and seedlings, cannabis,
cannabis products, and hemp products from another licensed cannabis business.

Wholesalers may also import hemp-derived consumer products and lower-potency hemp

edibles.

MY MinNNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANMNABIS MANAGEMENT




License Types (continued)

Transporter
Transporters may transport immature cannabis plants and seedlings, cannabis, cannabis

products, and hemp products to licensed cannabis businesses.

Testing Facility
Testing facilities may obtain and test immature cannabis plants and seedlings, cannabis,

cannabis products, and hemp products from licensed cannabis businesses.

Event Organizer

Event organizers may organize a temporary cannabis event lasting no more than four days.

Delivery Service
Delivery services may purchase cannabis, cannabis products, and hemp products from
retailers or cannabis business with retail endorsements for transport and delivery to

customers.

Medical Cannabis Combination Business

Medical cannabis combination businesses may cultivate cannabis and manufacture
cannabis and hemp products, and package such products for sale to customers, patients,
or another licensed cannabis business. Medical cannabis combination businesses may

operate up to one retail location in each congressional district.

Lower-Potency Hemp Edible Manufacturer

Lower-potency hemp edible manufacturers may manufacture and package lower-potency
hemp edibles for consumer sale, and sell hemp concentrate and lower-potency hemp

edibles to other cannabis and hemp businesses.

Lower-Potency Hemp Edible Retailer

Lower-potency hemp edible retailers may sell lower-potency hemp edibles to customers.

Each license is subject to further restrictions on allowable activities. Maximum cultivation
area and manufacturing allowances vary by license type. Allowable product purchase,

transfer, and sale between licensees are subject to restrictions in the law.

MY minNesoTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT



The Adult-Use Cannabis Law

Minnesota’s new adult-use cannabis law permits the personal use, possession, and

transportation of cannabis by those 21 years of age and older, and allows licensed

businesses to conduct cultivation, manufacturing, transport, delivery, and sale of cannabis

and cannabis products.

For Individuals

Possession limits:
o Flower - 2 oz. in public, 2 Ibs. in private residence

o Concentrate - 8 g

o Edibles (including lower-potency hemp) - 800 mg THC
Consumption only allowed on private property or at licensed businesses with on-site
consumption endorsements. Consumption not allowed in public.
Gifting cannabis to another individual over 21 years old is allowed, subject to
possession limits.
Home cultivation is limited to four mature and four immature plants (eight total) in a
single residence. Plants must be in an enclosed and locked space.
Home extraction using volatile substances (e.g., butane, ethanol) is not allowed.

Unlicensed sales are not allowed.

For Businesses

Advertising:

o May not include or appeal to those under 21 years old.

0

Must include proper warning statements.

o

N\ay not include misleading claims or false statements.

Billboards are not allowed.

o

The flow of all products through the supply chain must be
tracked by the state-authorized tracking system.
All products sold to consumers and patients must be

tested for contaminants.

Home delivery is allowed by licensed businesses.

M MiNNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




The Cannabis Licensing Process

An applicant will take the Foilowing steps to proceed from application to active licensure.
As described, processes vary depending on social equity status and/or whether the type of

license being sought is capped or uncapped in the general licensing process.

License Preapproval: Early Mover Process for Social

Equity Applicants

The license preapproval process is a one-time application process available for verified social
equity applicants. State law requires OCM to open the application window on July 24,
2024, and close the window on August 12, 2024. The preapproval process is available for

the following license types, and all are capped in this process: microbusiness, mezzobusiness,
YPes, pp P ;

cultivator, retailer, wholesaler, transporter, testing facility, and delivery service.
Preapproval steps:

1. Applicant’s social equity applicant (SEA) status verified.

2. Complete application and submit application fees.

3. Application vetted for minimum requirements by OCM.

4. Application (if qualified) entered into lottery drawing.

5. If selected in lottery, OCM completes background check of selected applicant and
issues license preapproval.

6. Applicant with license preapproval® submits business location and amends application
accordingly.

7. OCM forwards completed application to local government.

8. Local government completes certification of zoning compliance.

9. OCM conducts site inspection.

10. When regulations are adopted, license becomes active, operations may commence.

*For social equity applicants with license preapproval for microbusiness, mezzobusiness, or
a cultivator license, they may begin growing cannabis plants prior to the adoption of rules if
OCM receives approval from local governments in a form and manner determined by the
office. This is only applicable to cultivation and does not authorize retail sales or other

endorsed activities of the licenses prior to the adoption of rules.

MY mMiNNesOTA

OFFICE GF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT



The Cannabis Licensing Process (cont.)

The general licensing process will align with the adoption of rules and OCM will share more
information about the timing of general licensing process. The general |icensing process

includes social equity applicants and non-social equity applicants.

General Licensing: Cultivator, Manufacturer, Retailer, Mezzobusiness

1. Complete application and submit application fees.

2. Application vetted for minimum requirements by OCM.

3. Application (if qualified) entered into lottery drawing.

4. If selected in lottery, OCM completes background check of selected applicant and
issues preliminary approval.

S. Applicant with preliminary approval submits business location and amends application
accordingly.

6. OCM forwards completed application to local government.

7. Local government completes certification of zoning compliance.

8. OCM conducts site inspection.

9. License becomes active, operations may commence.”

General Licensing: Microbusiness, Wholesaler, Transporter, Testing

Facility, Event Organizer
1. Complete application and submit application fees.
2. Application vetted for minimum requirements by OCM.
3. For qualified applicants, OCM completes background check of vetted applicant and
issues preliminary approval.
4. Selected applicant submits business location and amends application accordingly.
5. OCM forwards completed application to local government.
6. Local government completes certification of zoning compliance.
7. OCM conducts site inspection.

8. License becomes active, operations may commence.”

*For businesses seeking a retail endorsement (microbusiness, mezzobusiness, and retailer),
a valid local retail registration is required prior to the business commencing any retail sales.

See Page 16 for information on the local retail registration process.

M MinNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNARBIS MANAGEMENT



General Authorities

Local governments in Minnesota have various means of oversight over the cannabis market,
as provided by the adult-use cannabis law. Local governments may not issue outright bans on

cannabis business, or limit operations in a manner beyond what is provided by state law.

Cannabis Retail Restrictions (342.13)

Local governments may limit the number of retailers and microbusiness/mezzobusinesses
with retail endorsements allowed within their locality, as long as there is at least one retail
location per 12,500 residents. Local units of government are not obligated to seek out a
business to register as cannabis business if they have not been approached by any potential
applicants, but cannot prohibit the establishment of a business if this population
requirement is not met. Local units of government may also issue more than the minimum
number of registrations. Per statutory direction, a municipal cannabis store (Page 19)
cannot be included in the minimum number of registrations required. For population

counts, the state demographer estimates will likely be utilized.

Tribal Governments (342.13)

OCM is prohibited from and will not issue state licenses to businesses in Indian Country
without consent from a tribal nation. Tribal nations hold the authority to license tribal
cannabis businesses on tribal lands — this process is separate than OCM'’s licensing
process and authority. Subject to compacting, Tribal nations may operate cannabis
businesses off tribal lands. There will be more information available once the compacting

processes are comp!ete.

Taxes (295.81; 295.82)

Retail sales of taxable cannabis products are subject to the state and local sales and use tax
and a 10% gross receipts tax. Cannabis gross receipts tax proceeds are allocated as follows:
20% to the local government cannabis aid account and 80% to the state general fund.

Local taxes imposed so|e|y on sale of cannabis products are prohibited.

Cannabis retailers will be subject to the same real property tax classification as all other
retail businesses. Real property used for raising, cultivating, processing, or storing cannabis
plants, cannabis flower, or cannabis products for sale will be classified as commercial and

industrial property.

MY minNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




General Authorities (cont.)
Retail Timing Restrictions (342.13)

Local governments may prohibit retail sales of cannabis between the hours of 8 a.m. and

10 a.m. Monday-Saturday, and 9 p.m. and 2 a.m. the following day.

Operating Multiple Locations with One License
Certain cannabis licenses allow for multiple retail locations to be operated under a si ngle

license, with the following limitations:

* Retailers: up to five retail locations.

* Mezzobusinesses: up to three retail locations.

* Microbusinesses: up to one retail location.

* Medical cannabis combination businesses: one retail location per congressional
district. Additionally, medical cannabis combination businesses may cultivate at more

than one location within other limitations on cultivation.

For all other license types, one license permits the operation of one location. Each retail

location requires local certification and/or registration.

MY miNNesoTA

CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Zoning and Land Use

Buffer Guidelines (342.13)

State law does not restrict how a local government conducts its zoning designations for
cannabis businesses, except that they may prohibit the operation of a cannabis business
within 1,000 feet of a school, or 500 feet of a day care, residential treatment facility, or
an attraction within a public park that is regularly used by minors, including playgrounds
and athletic fields.

Zoning Guidelines

While each locality conducts its zoning differently, a few themes have emerged across the
country. For example, cannabis manufacturing facilities are often placed in industrial
zones, while cannabis retailers are typically found in commercial/retail zones. Cannabis
retail facilities align with general retail establishments and are prohibited from allowing
consumption or use onsite, and are also required to have plans to prevent the visibility of
cannabis and hemp-derived products to individuals outside the retail location. Industrial

hemp is an agricultural product, and should be zoned as such.

Cannabis businesses should be zoned under existing zoning ordinances in accordance with
the license type or endorsed activities held by the cannabis business. Note that certain
types of licenses may be able to perform multiple activities which may have different
zoning analogues. In the same way municipalities may zone a microbrewery that
predominately sells directly to onsite consumers differently than a microbrewery that sells
packaged beer to retailers and restaurants, so too might a municipality wish to zone two
microbusinesses based on the actual activities that each business is undertaking. Table 1,
included on Pages 13 and 14, explains the types of activities that cannabis businesses might

undertake, as well as, some recommended existing zoning categories.

M\ MiNNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Zoning and Land Use (cont.)

Table 1: Cannabis and Hemp Business Activities

Endorsed Activity

License Type
Eligible to Do

Description of Activity

Comparable

Districts

Municipa!.

Considerations

Endorsed Activity

Cultivator

Mezzobusiness

"Cultivation” means any
activity involving the planting,
growing, harvesting, drying,

Indoor:
Industrial,

Commercial,

Odor

Potential need for
transportation from

facility

Manufacturing,

Microbusiness

cannabis and cannabis parts

Commercial,

Cultivation Microbusiness curing, grading, or trimming | Production
Medical Cannabis | of cannabis plants, cannabis
L Waste, water, and
Combination flower, hemp plants, or hemp | Outdoor:
. energy usage
plant parts. Agricultural
Security
Odor
This group of endorsed Potential need for
. Manufacturer g . .
Cannabis . activities turn raw, dried . transportation from
Mezzobusiness Industrial,

facility

Combination

in retail.

Processing, . . into other types of cannabis )
. S Medical Cannabis 7P ) Production
Extraction o products, e.g. edibles or Waste, water, and
Combination .
topicals. energy usage
Security
Lower-Potenc .
) Y _ Industrial, Odor
Hemp Hemp Edible These business convert hemp c - Wast " 4
. . ) ommercial, aste, water, an
Manufacturing (LPHE) into LPHE edible prodcuts. .
i Production energy
Manufacturing
Wholesale This activity and license type
Cultivator allows a business to purchase Need for
Manufacturer from a business growing or Industrial, transportation from
Wholesale Mezzobusiness manufacturing cannabis or Commercial, |facility
Microbusiness cannabis products and sell to | Production
Medical Cannabis  |a cannabis business engaged Security

MY MinNesOTA

CE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Zoning and Land Use (cont.)

Table 1: Cannabis and Hemp Business Activities (continued)

Endorsed Activity

License Type
Eligible to Do

Endorsed Activity

Description of
Activity

Comparable

Districts

Municfpa[

Considerations

Cannabis Retail

Retailer
Mezzobusiness
Microbusiness

Medical Cannabis

This endorsed
activity and license
types allow a business
to sell cannabis and

cannabis products

Retail,
Neighborhood
Shopping Districts,
Light Industrial,
Existing districts
where off-sale liquor

Micros may offer
onsite consumption,

similar to breweries.

Micros and Mezzos

may include multiple

tem porary event
lasting no more than

four days.

other restrictions
related to cannabis

use.

Combination directly to activities: cultivation,
or tobacco sales are
consumers. manufacture, and/or
allowed. .
retail.
Fleet based business
This license type that will own multiple
c bi allows a company to vehicles, but not
. annabis .
Transportation T + transport products necessarily hold a
ransporter . ;
P from one license substantial amount
type to another. of cannabis or
cannabis products.
Fleet based business
Lo that will own multiple
This license type . P
I ‘ vehicles, but not
. . . allows for }
Delivery Cannabis Delivery . necessarily hold a
transportation to the .
substantial amount
end consumer. .
of cannabis or
cannabis products.
L . On site
This license entitles | Anywhere that the .
. . . consumptaon.
license holder to city permits events
) organizer a to occur, subject to _
Events Event Orgamzer 8 ) Retail sales by a

licensed or endorsed
retail business

possible.

MY miNnesoTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Local Approval Process

Local governments play a critical role in the licensing
process, serving as a near-final approval check on
cannabis businesses nearing the awarding of a state
license for operations. Once an applicant has been
vetted by OCM and is selected for proceeding in the
verification process, they are then required to receive
the local government’s certification of zoning

compliance and/or local retail registration before

operations may commence.

Local Certification of Zoning Compliance (342.13;
342.14)

Following OCM'’s vetting process, local governments must eertify that the applicant with
preliminary approval has achieved compliance with local zoning ordinances prior to the

licensee receiving final approval from OCM to commence operations.

During the application and licensing process for cannabis businesses, OCM will notify a
local government when an applicant intends to operate within their jurisdiction and request
a certification as to whether a proposed cannabis business complies with local zoning
ordinances, and if applicable, whether the proposed business complies with state fire code

and building code.

According to Minnesota’s cannabis law, a local unit of government has 30 days to respond
to this request for certification of compliance. If a local government does not respond to
OCM’s request for certification of compliance within the 30 days, the cannabis law allows
OCM to issue a license. OCM may not issue the final approval for a license if the local

government has indicated they are not in compliance.

OCM will work with local governments to access the licensing software system to

complete this zoning certification process.
p g P

MY MiNNesoOTA

OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT



Local Approval Process (cont.)
Local Retail Registration Process (342.22)

Once the licensing process begins, local government registration applies to cannabis
retailers or other cannabis/hemp businesses seeking a retail endorsement. Local

governments must issue a retail registration after verifying that:

* The business has a valid license or license preapproval issued by OCM.
* The business has paid a registration fee or renewal fee to the local government;

o Initial registration fees collected by a local government may be $500 or half the
amount of the applicable initial license fee, whichever is less, and renewal
registration fees may be $1,000 or half the amount of the applicable renewal
license fee, whichever is less.

* The business is found to be in compliance with Chapter 342 and local ordinances.
* If applicable, the business is current on all property taxes and assessments for the

proposed retail location.

Local registrations may also be issued by counties if the respective local government

transfers such authorities to the county.

Determining a Process for Limiting Retail Registrations

If a local government wishes to place a limitation on the number of retailers and
microbusiness/mezzobusinesses with retail endorsements allowed within their locality (as
long as there is at least one retail location per 12,500 residents, see Page 10), state law
does not define the process for a local government’s selection if there are more applicants
than registrations available. A few options for this process include the use of a lottery, a
first-come/first-serve model, a rolling basis, and others. Local governments should work
with an attorney to determine their specific process for selection if they wish to limit the
number of licensed cannabis retailers per 342.13. Local governments are not required to

limit the number of licensed cannabis retailers.

MM minNesoOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Local Approval Process (cont.)

Local governments are permitted speciﬁc authorities for registration refusal and

registration suspension, in addition to—and not in conflict with—OCM authorities.

Registration and Renewal Refusals

Local governments may refuse the registration TR

and/or certification of a license renewal if the ‘ @
license is associated with an individual or business [r—

F = 5 D T

who no longer holds a valid license, has failed to pay ca— —

e s o o o

the local registration or renewal fee, or has been

found in noncompliance in connection with a m

preliminary or renewal compliance check.

Local Registration Suspension (342.22)

Local governments may suspend the local retail registration of a cannabis business or
hemp business if the business is determined to not be operating in compliance with a
local ordinance authorized by 342.13 or if the operation of the business poses an
immediate threat to the health and safety of the public. The local government must
immediately notify OCM of the suspension if it occurs. OCM will review the

suspension and may reinstate the registration or ta ke enforcement action.

Expedited Complaint Process (342.13)
Per state law, OCM will establish an expedited complaint process during the rulemaking
process to receive, review, read, and respond to complaints made by a local unit of

government about a cannabis business. Upon promulgation of rules, OCM will publish

the complaint process.

At a minimum, the expedited complaint process shall require the office to provide an
initial response to the complaint within seven days and perform any necessary
inspections within 30 days. Within this process, if a local government notifies OCM
that a cannabis business poses an immediate threat to the health or safety of the public,

the office must respond within one business day.

MY MinNesOTA

CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Inspections & Compliance Checks

Local governments are permitted specific business inspection and com pliance check

authorities, in addition to—and not in conflict with—OCM authorities.

Inspections and Compliance Checks (342.22)

Local governments must conduct compliance
checks for cannabis and hemp businesses
holding retail registration at least once per
calendar year. These compliance checks must
verify compliance with age verification
procedures and compliance with any applicable
local ordinance established pursuant to 342.13.
OCM maintains inspection authorities for all
cannabis licenses to verify compliance with

operation requirements, product limits, and

other applicable requirements of Chapter 342.

" Fra B, . 2B =
% e e £ 3 -
=4 -
¥ " = & o -3
); 5 ’ o Y

£

2 .
h
=

R e -

A ARRN

MY minNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Municipal Cannabis Stores

As authorized in Chapter 342.32, local
governments are permitted to apply for
a cannabis retail license to establish and

operate a mumc:lpaf cannabis store.

State law requires OCM issue a license to a 0
city or county seeking to operate a singie -
municipal cannabis store if the city or

County:

* Submits required application information to OCM,
* Meets minimum requirements for licensure, and

* Pays applicable application and license fee.

A municipal cannabis store will not be included in the total count of retail licenses issued by

the state under Chapter 342.

A municipal cannabis store cannot be counted as retail registration for purposes of

determining whether a municipality’s cap on retail registrations imposed by ordinance.

MY minNesoTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Creating Your Local Ordinance

As authorized in 342.13, a local government may adopt a local ordinance regarding
cannabis businesses. Establishing local governments’ ordinances on cannabis businesses in
a timely manner is critical for the ability for local cities or towns to establish local control as
described in the law, and is necessary for the success of the statewide industry and the
ability of local governments to protect public health and safety. The cannabis market’s
potential to createjobs, generate revenue, and contribute to economic development at
the local and state level is supported through local ordinance work. The issuance of local
certifications and registrations to prospective cannabis businesses is also dependent on

local ordinances.

® Local governments may not prohibit the possession, I l

transportation, or use of cannabis, or the establishment

or operation of a cannabis business licensed under state

law. '

® |ocal governments may adopt reasonable restrictions on
the time, place, and manner of cannabis business

operations (see Page 11).

® Local governments may adopt interim ordinances to
protect public safety and welfare, as any studies and/or
further considerations on local cannabis activities are
being conducted, until January 1, 2025. A public hearing

must be held prior to adoption of an interim ordinance.

e |fyour local government wishes to operate a municipal

cannabis store, the establishment and operation of such

a facility must be considered in a local ordinance.

Model Ordinance

For additional guidance regarding the creation of a cannabis related ordinance, please

reference the addendum in this packet.

MY miNNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Additional Resources
OCM Toolkit for Local Partners

Please visit OCM webpage (mn.gov/ocm/local-governments/) for additional information,
including a toolkit of resources deveioped speciﬁcaliy for local government partners. The
webpage will be updated as additional information becomes available and as state

regulations are adopted.
These resources are also included in the addendum of this packet.

Toolkit resources include:

e Appendix A: Model Ordinance

* Appendix B: Hemp Flower and Hemp-Derived Cannabinoid Product Checklist
e Appendix C: Enforcement Notice from the Office of Cannabis Management
e Appendix D: Notice to Unlawful Cannabis Sellers

Local Organizations

There are several organizations who also have developed resources to support local
governments regarding the cannabis industry. Please feel free to contact the
following for additional resources:

* League of Minnesota Cities

¢ Association of Minnesota Counties

¢ Minnesota Public Health Law Center

M MinNesOTA
OFFICE OF CANNABIS

S MANAGEMENT




Appendix A: Model Ordinance




Cannabis Model Ordinance

The following model ordinance is meant to be used as a resource for cities, counties, and townships within
Minnesota. The italicized text in red is meant to provide commentary and notes to jurisdictions considering
using this ordinance and should be removed from any ordinance formally adopted by said jurisdiction.
Certain items are not required to be included in the adopted ordinance: ‘OR’ and (optional) are placed
throughout for areas where a jurisdiction may want to consider one or more choices on language.

Section 1
Section 2
Section 3
Section 4
Section 5
Section 6
Section 7

Administration

Registration of Cannabis Business

Requirements for a Cannabis Business (Time, Place, Manner)
Temporary Cannabis Events

Lower Potency Hemp Edibles

Local Government as a Retailer

Use of Cannabis in Public

AN ORDINANCE OF THE (CITY/COUNTY OF ) TO REGULATE CANNABIS

BUSINESSES

The (city council/town board/county board) of (city/town/county) hereby ordains:

Section 1.
1.1

1.2

Administration

Findings and Purpose
(insert local authority) makes the following legislative findings:

The purpose of this ordinance is to implement the provisions of Minnesota Statutes,
chapter 342, which authorizes (insert local authority) to protect the public health, safety,
welfare of (insert local here) residents by regulating cannabis businesses within the legal
boundaries of {insert local here).

(insert local authority) finds and concludes that the proposed provisions are appropriate
and lawful land use regulations for (insert local here), that the proposed amendments will
promote the community's interest in reasonable stability in zoning for now and in the
future, and that the proposed provisions are in the public interest and for the public good.

Authority & lurisdiction
A county can adopt an ordinance that applies to unincorporated areas and cities that have
delegated authority to impose local zoning controls.

(insert local authority) has the authority to adopt this ordinance pursuant to:

a) Minn. Stat. 342.13(c), regarding the authority of a local unit of government to
adopt reasonable restrictions of the time, place, and manner of the operation of



a cannabis business provided that such restrictions do not prohibit the
establishment or operation of cannabis businesses.

b) Minn. Stat. 342.22, regarding the local registration and enforcement
requirements of state-licensed cannabis retail businesses and lower-potency
hemp edible retail businesses.

c) Minn. Stat. 152.0263, Subd. 5, regarding the use of cannabis in public places.

d) Minn. Stat. 462.357, regarding the authority of a local authority to adopt zoning
ordinances.

Ordinance shall be applicable to the legal boundaries of (insert local here).

(Optional) (insert city here) has delegated cannabis retail registration authority to (insert county here).
However, (insert city here) may adopt ordinances under Sections (2.6, 3 and 4) if (insert county here) has
not adopted conflicting provisions.

13

14

15

Severability

If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this ordinance is adjudged unconstitutional
or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance shall not
be affected thereby.

Enforcement
The elected body of a jurisdiction can choose to designate an official to administer and
enforce this ordinance.

The (insert name of local government or designated official) is responsible for the
administration and enforcement of this ordinance. Any violation of the provisions of this
ordinance or failure to comply with any of its requirements constitutes a misdemeanor
and is punishable as defined by law. Violations of this ordinance can occur regardless of
whether or not a permit is required for a regulated activity listed in this ordinance.

Definitions

Unless otherwise noted in this section, words and phrases contained in Minn. Stat. 342.01
and the rules promulgated pursuant to any of these acts, shall have the same meanings in
this ordinance.

Cannabis Cultivation: A cannabis business licensed to grow cannabis plants within the
approved amount of space from seed or immature plant to mature plant. harvest
cannabis flower from mature plant, package and label immature plants and seedlings
and cannabis flower for sale to other cannabis businesses, transport cannabis flower to a
cannabis manufacturer located on the same premises, and perform other actions
approved by the office.

Cannabis Retail Businesses: A retail location and the retail location(s) of a
mezzobusinesses with a retail operations endorsement, microbusinesses with a retail
operations endorsement, medical combination businesses operating a retail location,
(and/excluding) lower-potency hemp edible retailers.



Section 2.

10.

11.
12.

13.

14.

Cannabis Retailer: Any person, partnership, firm, corporation, or association, foreign or
domestic, selling cannabis product to a consumer and not for the purpose of resale in any
form.

Daycare: A location licensed with the Minnesota Department of Human Services to
provide the care of a child in a residence outside the child's own home for gain or
otherwise, on a regular basis, for any part of a 24-hour day.

Lower-potency Hemp Edible: As defined under Minn. Stat. 342.01 subd. 50.

Office of Cannabis Management: Minnesota Office of Cannabis Management, referred to
as “OCM” in this ordinance.

Place of Public Accommodation: A business, accommodation, refreshment,
entertainment, recreation, or transportation facility of any kind, whether licensed or not,
whose goods, services, facilities, privileges, advantages or accommodations are extended,
offered, sold, or otherwise made available to the public.

Preliminary License Approval: OCM pre-approval for a cannabis business license for
applicants who qualify under Minn. Stat. 342.17.

Public Place: A public park or trail, public street or sidewalk; any enclosed, indoor area
used by the general public, including, but not limited to, restaurants; bars; any other food
or liquor establishment; hospitals; nursing homes; auditoriums; arenas; gyms; meeting
rooms; common areas of rental apartment buildings, and other places of public
accommodation.

Residential Treatment Facility: As defined under Minn. Stat. 245.462 subd. 23.

Retail Registration: An approved registration issued by the (insert local here) to a state-
licensed cannabis retail business.

School: A public school as defined under Minn. Stat. 120A.05 or a nonpublic school that
must meet the reporting requirements under Minn. Stat. 120A.24.

State License: An approved license issued by the State of Minnesota’s Office of Cannabis
Management to a cannabis retail business.

Registration of Cannabis Businesses

A city or town can delegate authority for registration to the County. A city or town can still adopt specific
requirement regarding zoning, buffers, and use in public places, provided said requirements are not in
conflict with an ordinance adopted under the delegated authority granted to the County.

21

Consent to registering of Cannabis Businesses
No individual or entity may operate a state-licensed cannabis retail business within (insert
local here) without first registering with (insert local here).

Any state-licensed cannabis retail business that sells to a customer or patient without valid
retail registration shall incur a civil penalty of (up to $2,000) for each violation.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, the state shall not issue a license to any
cannabis business to operate in Indian country, as defined in United States Code, title 18,
section 1151, of a Minnesota Tribal government without the consent of the Tribal
government.



i

2.3

Compliance Checks Prior to Retail Registration
A jurisdiction can choose to conduct a preliminary compliance check prior to issuance of
retail registration.

Prior to issuance of a cannabis retail business registration, (insert local here) (shall/shall
not) conduct a preliminary compliance check to ensure compliance with local ordinances.

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. 342, within 30 days of receiving a copy of a state license
application from OCM, (insert local here) shall certify on a form provided by OCM whether
a proposed cannabis retail business complies with local zoning ordinances and, if
applicable, whether the proposed business complies with the state fire code and building
code.

Registration & Application Procedure
2.3.1 fees:

(insert local here) shall not charge an application fee.

A registration fee, as established in (insert local here)’s fee schedule, shall be charged to
applicants depending on the type of retail business license applied for.

An initial retail registration fee shall not exceed $500 or half the amount of an initial state
license fee under Minn. Stat. 342.11, whichever is less. The initial registration fee shall
include the initial retail registration fee and the first annual renewal fee.

Any renewal retail registration fee imposed by (insert local here) shall be charged at the
time of the second renewal and each subsequent renewal thereafter.

A renewal retail registration fee shall not exceed $1,000 or half the amount of a renewal
state license fee under Minn. Stat. 342.11, whichever is less.

A medical combination business operating an adult-use retail location may only be
charged a single registration fee, not to exceed the lesser of a single retail registration fee,
defined under this section, of the adult-use retail business.

2.3.2 Application Submittal.

The (insert local here) shall issue a retail registration to a state-licensed cannabis retail
business that adheres to the requirements of Minn. Stat. 342.22.
(A) An applicant for a retail registration shall fill out an application form, as provided
by the (insert local here). Said form shall include, but is not limited to:
i.  Full name of the property owner and applicant;
ii. Address, email address, and telephone number of the applicant;
ii.  The address and parcel ID for the property which the retail registration is
sought;
iv.  Certification that the applicant complies with the requirements of local
ordinances established pursuant to Minn. Stat. 342.13.
V. (Insert additional standards here)
(B) The applicant shall include with the form:



i. the application fee as required in [Section 2.3.1];
ii. a copy of a valid state license or written notice of OCM license
preapproval;
iii.  (Insert additional standards here)

(C) Once an application is considered complete, the (insert local government
designee) shall inform the applicant as such, process the application fees, and
forward the application to the (insert staff/department, or elected body that will
approve or deny the request) for approval or denial.

(D) The application fee shall be non-refundable once processed.

2.3.3 Application Approval

(A) (Optional) A state-licensed cannabis retail business application shall not be
approved if the cannabis retail business would exceed the maximum number of
registered cannabis retail businesses permitted under Section 2.6.

(B) A state-licensed cannabis retail business application shall not be approved or
renewed if the applicant is unable to meet the requirements of this ordinance.

(C) A state-licensed cannabis retail business application that meets the requirements
of this ordinance shall be approved.

2.3.4 Annual Compliance Checks.

The (insert local here) shall complete at minimum one compliance check per calendar
year of every cannabis business to assess if the business meets age verification
requirements, as required under [Minn. Stat. 342.22 Subd. 4(b) and Minn. Stat. 342.24]
and this/these [chapter/section/ordinances].

The (insert local here) shall conduct at minimum one unannounced age verification
compliance check at least once per calendar year.

Age verification compliance checks shall involve persons at least 17 years of age but under
the age of 21 who, with the prior written consent of a parent or guardian if the person is
under the age of 18, attempt to purchase adult-use cannabis flower, adult-use cannabis
products, lower-potency hemp edibles, or hemp-derived consumer products under the
direct supervision of a law enforcement officer or an employee of the local unit of
government.

Any failures under this section must be reported to the Office of Cannabis Management.

2.3.5 Location Change

A jurisdiction may decide to treat location changes as a new registration, or alternatively
treat a location change as allowable subject to compliance with the rest of the registration
process.

A state-licensed cannabis retail business shall be required to submit a new application for
registration under Section 2.3.2 if it seeks to move to a new location still within the legal
boundaries of (insert local here).



2.4

2.5

or

If a state-licensed cannabis retail business seeks to move to a new location still within the
legal boundaries of (insert local here), it shall notify (insert local here) of the proposed
location change, and submit necessary information to meet all the criteria in this
paragraph.

Renewal of Registration
The (insert local here) shall renew an annual registration of a state-licensed cannabis retail
business at the same time OCM renews the cannabis retail business’ license.

A state-licensed cannabis retail business shall apply to renew registration on a form
established by (insert local here).

A cannabis retail registration issued under this ordinance shall not be transferred.
2.4.1 Renewal Fees.

The (insert local here) may charge a renewal fee for the registration starting at the second
renewal, as established in (insert local here)’s fee schedule.

2.4.2 Renewal Application.
The application for renewal of a retail registration shall include, but is not limited to:

e [tems required under Section 2.3.2 of this Ordinance.
e Insert additional items here

Suspension of Registration
2.5.1 When Suspension is Warranted.

The (insert local here) may suspend a cannabis retail business’s registration if it violates
the ordinance of (insert local here) or poses an immediate threat to the health or safety
of the public. The (insert local here) shall immediately notify the cannabis retail business
in writing the grounds for the suspension.

2.5.2 Notification to OCM.

The (insert local here) shall immediately notify the OCM in writing the grounds for the
suspension. OCM will provide (insert local here) and cannabis business retailer a response
to the complaint within seven calendar days and perform any necessary inspections within
30 calendar days.

2.5.3 Length of Suspension.
A jurisdiction can wait for a determination from the OCM before reinstating a registration.

The suspension of a cannabis retail business registration may be for up to 30 calendar
days, unless OCM suspends the license for a longer period. The business may not make
sales to customers if their registration is suspended.



2.6

Section 3.

The (insert local here) may reinstate a registration if it determines that the violations have
been resolved.

The (insert local here) shall reinstate a registration if OCM determines that the violation(s)
have been resolved.

2.5.4 Civil Penalties.

Subject to Minn. Stat. 342.22, subd. 5(e) the (insert local here) may impose a civil penalty,
as specified in the (insert local here)’s Fee Schedule, for registration violations, not to
exceed $2,000.

Limiting of Registrations

A jurisdiction may choose to set a limit on the number of retail registrations within its
boundaries. The jurisdiction may not however, limit the number of registrations to fewer
than one per 12,500 residents.

(Optional) The (insert local here) shall limit the number of cannabis retail businesses to
no fewer than one registration for every 12,500 residents within (insert local legal
boundaries here).

(Optional) If (insert county here) has one active cannabis retail businesses registration for
every 12,500 residents, the (insert local here) shall not be required to register additional
state-licensed cannabis retail businesses.

(Optional) The (insert local here) shall limit the number of cannabis retail businesses to
(insert number <= minimum required).

Requirements for Cannabis Businesses

State Statutes note that jurisdictions may “adopt reasonable restrictions on the time, place, and manner
of the operation of a cannabis business.” A jurisdiction considering other siting requirements (such as a
buffer between cannabis businesses, or a buffer from churches) should consider whether there is a basis
to adopt such restrictions.

Al

Minimum Buffer Requirements

A jurisdiction can adopt buffer requirements that prohibit the operation of a cannabis
business within a certain distance of schools, daycares, residential treatment facilities, or
from an attraction within a public park that is regularly used by minors, including a
playground or athletic field. Buffer requirements are optional. A jurisdiction cannot
adopt larger buffer requirements than the requirements here in Section 3.1. A jurisdiction
should use a measuring system consistent with the rest of its ordinances, e.g. from lot
line or center point of lot.

{Optional) The (insert local here) shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis business within
[0-1,000] feet of a school.



=¥

(Optional) The (insert local here) shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis business within
[0-500] feet of a day care.

(Optional) The (insert local here) shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis business within
[0-500] feet of a residential treatment facility.

(Optional) The (insert local here) shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis business within
[0-500] feet of an attraction within a public park that is regularly used by minors, including
a playground or athletic field.

(Optional) The (insert local here) shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis retail business
within [X] feet of another cannabis retail business.

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. 462.367 subd. 14, nothing in Section 3.1 shall prohibit an active
cannabis business or a cannabis business seeking registration from continuing operation
at the same site if a (school/daycare/residential treatment facility/attraction within a
public park that is regularly used by minors) moves within the minimum buffer zone.

Zoning and Land Use

For jurisdictions with zoning, said jurisdiction can limit what zone(s) Cannabis businesses
can operate in. As with other uses in a Zoning Ordinance, a jurisdiction can also
determine if such use requires a Conditional or Interim Use permit. A jurisdiction cannot
outright prohibit a cannabis business. A jurisdiction should amend their Zoning
Ordinance and list what zone(s) Cannabis businesses are permitted in, and whether they
are permitted, conditional, or interim uses. While each locality conducts its zoning
differently, a few themes have emerged across the country. For example, cannabis
manufacturing facilities are often placed in industrial zones, while cannabis retailers are
typically found in commercial/retail zones. Cannabis retail facilities align with general
retail establishments and are prohibited from allowing consumption or use onsite and
are also required to have plans to prevent the visibility of cannabis and hemp-derived
products to individuals outside the retail location. Cannabis businesses should be zoned
under existing zoning ordinances in accordance with the license type or endorsed
activities held by the cannabis business.

3.2.1. Cultivation.
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for cultivation are permitted as a (type of use)
in the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

3.2.1. Cannabis Manufacturer.
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for cannabis manufacturer are permitted as a
(type of use) in the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)



55

3.4

3.2.1. Hemp Manufacturer.
Businesses licensed or endorsed for low-potency hemp edible manufacturers permitted
as a (type of use) in the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

3.2.1. Wholesale.
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for wholesale are permitted as a (type of use)
in the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

3.2.1. Cannabis Retail.
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for cannabis retail are permitted as a (type of
use) in the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

3.2.1. Cannabis Transportation.
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for transportation are permitted as a (type of
use) in the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

3.2.1. Cannabis Delivery.
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for delivery are permitted as a (type of use) in
the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

Hours of Operation

A jurisdiction may adopt an ordinance limiting hours of operation to the hours between
10 a.m. and 9 p.m., seven days a week. State statute prohibits the sale of cannabis
between 2 a.m. and 8 a.m., Monday through Saturday, and between 2 a.m. and 10 a.m.
on Sundays.

(Optional) Cannabis businesses are limited to retail sale of cannabis, cannabis flower,
cannabis products, lower-potency hemp edibles, or hemp-derived consumer products
between the hours of (insert time here) and (insert time here).

(Optional) Advertising

Cannabis businesses are permitted to erect up to two fixed signs on the exterior of the
building or property of the business, unless otherwise limited by (insert local here)’s sign
ordinances.



Section 4. Temporary Cannabis Events

Any individual or business seeking to obtain a cannabis event license must provide OCM information
about the time, location, layout, number of business participants, and hours of operation. A cannabis
event organizer must receive local approval, including obtaining any necessary permits or licenses issued
by a local unit of government before holding a cannabis event.

4.1

License or Permit Required for Temporary Cannabis Events

4.1.1 License Required.

A cannabis event organizer license entitles the license holder to organize a temporary
cannabis event lasting no more than four days. A jurisdiction should determine what type
of approval is consistent with their existing ordinances for events.

A license or permit is required to be issued and approved by (insert local here) prior to
holding a Temporary Cannabis Event.

4.1.2 Registration & Application Procedure
A registration fee, as established in (insert local here)’s fee schedule, shall be charged to
applicants for Temporary Cannabis Events.

4.1.3 Application Submittal & Review.
The (insert local here) shall require an application for Temporary Cannabis Events.

(A) An applicant for a retail registration shall fill out an application form, as provided
by the (insert local here). Said form shall include, but is not limited to:
i. Full name of the property owner and applicant;
ii. Address, email address, and telephone number of the applicant;
iii. (Insert additional standards here)
(B) The applicant shall include with the form:
i the application fee as required in (Section 4.1.2);
ii. a copy of the OCM cannabis event license application, submitted pursuant
to 342.39 subd. 2.

The application shall be submitted to the (insert local authority), or other designee for
review. If the designee determines that a submitted application is incomplete, they shall
return the application to the applicant with the notice of deficiencies.

(C) Once an application is considered complete, the designee shall inform the
applicant as such, process the application fees, and forward the application to the
(insert staff/department, or elected body that will approve or deny the request) for
approval or denial.

(D) The application fee shall be non-refundable once processed.

(E) The application for a license for a Temporary Cannabis Event shall meet the
following standards:



A jurisdiction may establish standards for Temporary cannabis events which the event
organizer must meet, including restricting or prohibiting any on-site consumption. If
there are public health, safety, or welfare concerns associated with a proposed cannabis
event, a jurisdiction would presumably be authorized to deny approval of that event.

e Insert standards here
(G) A request for a Temporary Cannabis Event that meets the requirements of this
Section shall be approved.

(H) A request for a Temporary Cannabis Event that does not meet the requirements
of this Section shall be denied. The (insert city/town/county) shall notify the
applicant of the standards not met and basis for denial.

(Optional) Temporary cannabis events shall only be held at (insert local place).

(Optional) Temporary cannabis events shall only be held between the hours of (insert start
time) and (insert stop time).

Section5.  (Optional) Lower-Potency Hemp Edibles
A jurisdiction can establish different standards or requirements regarding Low-Potency Edibles. A
jurisdiction can consider including the following section and subsections in their cannabis ordinance.

5.1 Sale of Low-Potency Hemp Edibles
The sale of Low-Potency Edibles is permitted, subject to the conditions within this
Section.

5.2 Zoning Districts
If sales are permitted, a jurisdiction can limit what zone(s) the sales of Low-Potency
Edibles can take place in. A jurisdiction can also determine if such activity requires a
Conditional or Interim Use permit.

Low-Potency Edibles businesses are permitted as a (type of use) in the following zoning
districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

5.3 (Optional) Additional Standards
5.3.1 Sales within Municipal Liquor Store.

A jurisdiction that already operates a Municipal Liquor Store may sell Low-Potency
Edibles within the same store.

The sale of Low-Potency Edibles is permitted in a Municipal Liquor Store.
5.3.2 Age Requirements.

A jurisdiction is able to restrict the sale of Low-Potency Edibles to locations such as bars.



The sale of Low-Potency Edibles is permitted only in places that admit persons 21 years
of age or older.

5.3.3 Beverages.

The sale of Low-Potency Hemp Beverages is permitted in places that meet requirements
of this Section.

5.3.4 Storage of Product.
A jurisdiction is able to set requirements on storage and sales of Low-Potency Edibles.

Low-Potency Edibles shall be sold behind a counter, and stored in a locked case.

Section 6.  (Optional) Local Government as a Cannabis Retailer
(insert local here) may establish, own, and operate one municipal cannabis retail business
subject to the restrictions in this chapter.

The municipal cannabis retail store shall not be included in any limitation of the number
of registered cannabis retail businesses under Section 2.6.

(insert local here) shall be subject to all same rental license requirements and procedures
applicable to all other applicants.

Section 7 Use in Public Places

No person shall use cannabis flower, cannabis products, lower-potency hemp edibles, or hemp-derived
consumer products in a public place or a place of public accommodation unless the premises is an
establishment or an event licensed to permit on-site consumption of adult-use.



Appendix B: Hemp Flower and Hemp?
Derived Cannabinoid Product Checklist




T 11|22y 19NpoUd ploulgeuue) panlag-dwsH pue Jamoj4 dwaH

élaulged payoo| e ul

J0 J231UN02 3yl pulyaq ‘sadelanaq

*SJ2W0ISND 0} 3|CISSIIIEU| PUE B4NIBS 1daoxa ‘s1onpoud plouigeuued

aJe s1onpoJd pioulqeuued 3|gipa || 94NSUd 1SNW sassauisng 9|qIP? ||B aARY SSaUISNg 3yl sa0Q
‘auoAue 01 p|os 3g Aew s3onpoud asay | ¢4op|o 4o p|o Ssieah

‘s|ea1dol Jo uoildaoxa ayl yHm ‘s1onpoud ploulqeuued paAlisp Tz suosJad 01 apeuw ale sa|es
-dway aseyaind Aew Japjo Jo a3e Jo sieaA Tz suostad AjuQ [|E 1BY3] 2JNSUa ssaulIsng ayi s20Q

s3oNpoud ||V — @2uejjdwo) 1onpoad

JHL 49suay| Jonby)

J0 uoidwnsuod a1s-uo Suiwaad sassaulsng ||e 4o} paJinbal e aAey Aayl op ‘uondwnsuod

24 953y 'SasuDI| uoildwnsuod 31S-Uo aNss| salllioyine |ed07 9}IS-UO SJ124J0 ssaulsng ayl J|

[WIY Xapui/sa[qipa/siqeuued/s|doad/sn Uil 91eIS yI[eay MMM iyyeay

S1ONpOJd PIOUIGBUUR) PoAlag-dWaH 39S 'paJalsidal 24 JO uswedsq el0SaUUIA 3yl

1snw s3onpoJd piouigeuued paalap-dway gul(|as sassaulsng || yum paJaisidal ssauisng ay1 s|
oueljdwo) uoljealsiday pue asuadi] ssauisng

uojjewsoju| |leuoi}ippy SIUBWIWO) | ON | SIA uopnsanp

$10Np0.d PIOUIqRUUR) UIBMD JO 3|BS ‘Z/ TST 9IN1elS B10SUUI
sigeuue) Jo asM YNpPY [BUOSIAd ‘60°ZHE 9INILIS BIOSIUUIN 6 UOISINIPQNS ‘TO'ZST 21N1LIS BIOSAUUIN
SawD) 9|eS SIqeuuR) ‘Y920’ ZST 9INILIS BIOSBUUIA SUOINULAQ ‘20’M8T 9IN1BIS BIOSAUUIA|

1SIP|P2YD 19Np0oId ploulqeuue) panuag-dwaH pue Jamol4 dwaH

UYijeaH jo Juswiedaq
Juswasdeuey siqeuue) Jo PO

VIOSONNIW LUU




rd 1sI]399YD) 19NpoId ploujgeuue) paAliag-dwsH pue jamol4 dwaH

é|e101 uj pue ulAIas
‘[e301 Ul Se [|am Aqg spiouigeuued ay) 21edipul
se guinias [enpialpul Ag Adusiod ayi 21edipul Isnw [9ge| ayL 1onpoJsd ay3 uo |age| ayl saoQd

ilagunu yaleq

1onpoud pue ‘sjyoid ploulgeuued
‘AJojeloqe| 8u1sa) Juapuadapul
93 JO sWeu ay31 sapnjoul

"3|1404d ploujgeuued Yolym ‘a1sqam ayy uo sishjeuy

ay3 apnjoul 1snw s3nsaJd ay ] -Alojeloqe| palipasdde }JO 91E211143)) e 01 49sn ay3 Suliq
“uapuadapul ue ul yaleq Aq pa1sal aq Isnw sypnpoud ||y 3onpoud ay3 uo apol YD ayi saoq
i9pod

YD e ysnouyy papiaoid Jo |age|
3y} uo papnoul Jaqwinu auoyd
10BIUOD puUE ‘B1ISgaM ‘ssalppe

"9oueldwod ul 10U St 1anpoud ayi ‘10u §| ‘Qwieu s Jalnidejnuew ayl s|

¢ ,uaip|iyo jo yoeau

L U4p|iys jo 10 1no doay|,, 91e1s 23eianaq

yoead jo Ino daay|, |aqe| Suluiem 3yl spnjaul 1snw s1anpoud ||y J0O 3|qIpa 2Y3 UO |3qe| 3yl sa0Q

$uaJapyd Ag pawnsuod
J0 0} pa3dyJew Jonpoud

‘PaMO]||B 10U 2Je UJP|IYd Aq PaWNSU0D 10 PIEMO] palayiew e 01 Je|iwis aJe 1ey3 s1onpoud
syoeuUs Jo Apued 03 Jejiwis Jeadde 1ey) s1onpoud 3|qip3 3|qIpa Aue ||as ssaulsng ay3 saoq
isplouiqeuued 3ulledIxolul

"6-B1|9p J0/pue g-e1ap Ajuo uiejuod Jay1o Aue yum sadelansq

1snw jonpoud ay] 032 ‘dg-e}ap ‘dg-elop ‘TT-eiep ‘0T-el2p J0 $3|qIP? ||9S SSauIsN( 9yl sa0Q
‘YHd ‘d-IHL ‘O-DHL ‘DHH Se yans ‘spiouiqeuues sujed|xolul ‘uo13dwnsuod uewny 40} pamoj|e
1ua13)41p Auew Bujuiejuod sypnpodd payiuapl sey HAIN ale g-e1|9p pue g-e3=ap Ajuo

uoijewJoju| |euolppyY sjuaWWo) | ON | SBA uonsanp




1s1129YD 12Npo.d plouigeuue) paAliag-dway pue Jamol4 dwaH

‘pamo||e 10U aJle
2JNseaw 01 J3WNSU0d 3y} aJinbaJ 1eyl s1onpoud y|ng “19npoud
ay3 uo paysinduiisip Aj4ea)d aq 1snw sguiaias 1onpoud 3|q1p3

é1onpoud

9Y1 U0 paJods 4o ‘paddesm
‘poyew Ajiea)d s3ulaies
s,1onpoud 3|qIpa 3yl ||e aly

‘ploulgeuued 3ujlealxolul
40 DHL JO WJ0} Jay3lo Aue ujejuod J0Uued 3|qIpa 3y "adeyded
Jad g-e3|2p J0o g-B1}jop |B101 W Qg Pa3IXa J0U Aew sa|qip3

¢(6-e19p Jo/pue

8-e1/3p) DH. |e101 3w 0§ uey
2JOW uleluod Jaulejuod/adeyded
1onpoud 9|qiIpa 3yl ss0Q

‘Buinsas
Jad g-e1/9p Jo/pue g-e}ap Sw G pPaddIxXa Jou Aew s3|qIp3

é8uinies Jad g-e19p
Jo/pue g-e1ap Sw g ueyl aiow
uleuod 1onpoJd 3|qIpa 3y1 sao(

s3|qip3 — ddueljdwo) pnpoid

‘sjuawiaJinbau

28eJanaq Jo 3|qIpa 3yl yum Ajdwod pue aelanaq

JO 9|qIpa ue Jaylla se pa|age| 3¢ ISNW SaUNJdUl| P|OS 3¢ J0UUEed
s13|qe1 pue s|a81j0s ‘a404a43Y] ‘|edido) Jo ‘a3esanaq ‘9|qips ue
JO wuJoy ayy ul pjos aq Ajuo Aew spiouiqeuued Suj1e3IX01ul-UoN

iainpun

J0 ‘19|qe} ‘|98140S e Jo wuoy 3y}
ul (jo1pIgEUUED JO SWUO) JBY10
J0) @gD [|3s ssauisng ayi saoqg

'va4 ay1 Aq
panoidde AjjewJo} uaaq sey 1anpoad Y3 ssajun jjauaq Yyijeay
Aue apiaoud [jim 1onpoud syl Wiejd J0Uued Jaindeinuew ay|

doaseasip Aue juanaud

JO 24n3J ‘}eaJ] ‘esoudeip o1 wie|d
10U S30p 1npoJd 3y 1.yl alels
1onpoud 2yl uo [age| ay1 saog

‘Juawalels panoidde
ue Jou S| 8Jay3 ‘@wil SIY3 1Y 'vYa4 3yl Aq panoidde ssajun
sjonpoJd sigeuued Jo dway uo pajyiwiad jou aJe swied yijeaH

$1J2uaq yijeay jo pup| Aue siayo
1npoud syl wiep Aue ayew
1npoud 3y} uo [age| ay3 saoQ

uoljew.ojuj |leuonippy

SjuaWIWo) | oN | S9A uonsanp




151112342 19Np0oUd plouigeuue) paAlag-dwaH pue Jamol4 dwaH

“HWII DHL

9£°0 9Y3 Spaadxa A||eaidAl 1onpoud ayl yaiym 4o ‘|eralew ayl
0} pajjdde spiouigeuued [euollippe aAey ,paleod, Jo ,pashjul,
se pajage| s [|oJ-24d e J1 ‘4anamoH 'z TST Ag paieindal jou
aJe s1onpoud asay] ‘Jamoly dway med 4o 1s1suod Aew s||0J-2id

‘“IHL +%06 - %0S Uleluod sadeA 1sow ‘@ualiadxa

s,HAIN U] "a8exded 1onpoad 3yl uo apod YO ay3 ysnoayl
punoj si AjjeaidAy 21831413492 8y *suleluod 1onpoJd ayl JH1 o
UOI3BJ3UDIUOD Y} MOYS [|IM SISA|eu. JO 91821411132 5,10npoud v

¢IHL %E'0 Ueyl

2JOW UjeIu0I YaIym s1anpoud
9|gedows Jay1o Jo ‘sgep ‘s||oJ
-24d ‘saden ||9s ssauisng ayl se0(

(1amojj-uou) sajgerows — adueljdwo) Pnpoid

‘ajes Jo 1uiod ayy 1e Seq anbedo ue ul adesanaq ayl
ade|d 1snW ss3UISNQ Y3 JBUIBIU0D JeI|D B Ul S| 93eJ3A3] Y3 |

¢Jauleluod anbedo
ue ul 1onpoJd a3eJiaAaq ay3 S|

‘Aduazod
JH1 Y3 jo ssajpJedau ‘sBuIAIaS OM] Pa3IX3 J0uUUR) sa8elanag

éS3UIAIDS Z UByY) @J0W UlBluod
1onpoJd a3esanaq 3yl sa0(Q

‘Buinias
Jad g-e3ap Jo/pue g-e1ap Sw g paadIxa Jou Aew sadelanag

é8uinias Jad g-eyep 1o
g-e3/9p Sw g uey) alow uleuod
19npoud adelanaq ayi saoQ

sadelanag -

9uejjdwo) 3onpoid

‘Pamoj|e 10u aJe sgeq

Jea|) *a|es jo wiod ayi 1e Seq anbedo ue ojul 3|qIpa ay3 3de|d
1SNW SSaUISNg ay3 ‘Jea|d SI JaUIBIUO0D Byl J| "JUSpIAS Jadwe]
pue 1ue1SIS3J-P|IYD S| 1BY] JBUIBIUOI B Ul 3q 1SNW S3|qIPa ||V

édauleuoa
anbedo ‘quapins-iadwes ‘Jjooud
-p|'ya e ul 19npoJd 3|qipa ay3 S|

"pamoj|e J0u aJe uaJp|iyd o3 |eadde eyl sadeys uj sa|qIp3

dsuoqqu ‘sgul ‘synJy ‘swiom
‘s1eaq Jo adeys ay1 ui syonpoud
9|qipa Aue |9 ssauisng 3yl sao(

uoljewou| jeuoiippy

sjuawwo)

ON

S9A

uolsanp




15I]393YD) 19NpoUd ploulgeuue) paAliag-dwaH pue Jamol4 dwaH

‘9|es |eda|!
UE 91N111SU0D PINoM SISAjeue JO 1edljiliad e Jode|Y e
‘6-19P %E'0 Mo|3q Bulisal
MOYs 03 SIsA[eue JO 91e31J11492 B 3pN[aUl 1SNLU JaMO|} MeY

(DHL 6-P + (V-DHL X ££8°0) = JHL €101
ISMO||0} SE SI B|NWLIO) 1By L

‘6-2}]2p 0IUl Y-DHL JO UOISISAUOD

9Y3 JUNODJE 01Ul S3YE] YIIYM BNW.Io} uollejAxoq.edsp

B 95N UBD 3UO ‘6-1|3P JO %E 0 3|gemo||e ayl paadxa

(1M Jamoly dway ay) ‘paleay 2Ju0 ‘43Y1aym aulwialep ol

"150| SI Y-JHL 40 Junowe
awos ssa20.d 1eY] Ul *6-13P 01 SHBAUOI Y-DHL paleay
22UQ "6-e32p 03 Josindaid aazaeoydAsd uou ayl st y-OHL

"a|es Joj |ed3||l 24 pue ‘euen(liew
aJe 1ySiam AIp 6-e113p %E£'0 SuIpasIxXa S1onNpoUd ‘siseq 1ydiam
AJp B UO §-B13P JO SS3| 4O %E'Q UIBIUOD 1SNW Jamo[) dway mey

ilamoyy
dway meu ||as ssauisng ayl saoqg

1amo|4 — aaueljdwo) 3npoid

‘pajeyul
Jo ‘padea ‘payows g J0UURD Spioulqeuued Sul3edIXoul-UON

é@gD ureuod yaiym sionpoud
a|gedows Jay1o Jo ‘sgep ‘s||oJ
-a4d ‘saden ||as ssauisng ayi saoQ

‘JHL uey3 Jo1eaus Acualod saey o1
umouy plouiqeuued e st JHH "Apoq ay3 Jo uol1duny JO INJINJ3S
2y3 J2}|E 01 papPUIUl S| ploulgeuurRd ay) Ji p|os 3¢ 01 ‘6-eljap Jo
g-B1|9p UBY] JBYl0 ‘plouigeuued Aue moj|e 10U op sa1n1e1s NIA

¢OJHH se

yons ‘splouigeuued ujledIxojul
J2Y10 uleluod jeys spnpoud
3|geayows Jaylo Jo ‘sqep ‘sjjod
-24d ‘saden ||as ssauisng ayl sa0(

uolew.o4u| [eUCIHIPPY

SlUusWwo) | ON | SOA uolnsany




9 1SIPjP3YD 19NpoId pioulgeuur) paAllag-dway pue Jamol4 dwaH

Iy sIuie|dwoo/sa|qIpa/siqeuues/s[doad/Sn Ui alels yiesy MMM] STUTe[dWo) 10npo.d ploulqeuue) paAag-dwWsH SUlNIWgNS e wJoy
jure|dwod ayj asn ued Ay} ‘Me| BJOS3UUIA JO UOIB|OIA U] plos Bulaq sl 1onpoud ploujqeuued paausp-dway e jeyi syoadsns uosiad e §| :310N

¢ 8uiBeyoed

[eUISIIO JI3Y] WO paAOWAI Ud3q

9ABY Yolym s1onpoud sasiwald

*J3wWoisnd 93 WO} dAOWD 0] SI2WO0ISNI

2yl Ag sasiwaJid ay3 wouy parowad aq jouued guidesded 1wiad Asyy op ‘uolldwnsuod
[eulS1I0 JI9Y] WO} PRAOWRL UD3Q dARY UdIYM S1oNpo.d 91IS-UO SJ9JJ0 SS3UISNg ayl §|
éloyooje

yum a8esanaq pasnjul-sigeuued

‘loyodje e Xiw Aayy op ‘uondwnsuod

yum s3npoud pasnjul-siqeuued xiw Jou Aew ssauisng ay L 91IS-U0 SJ2JJ0 SSaUISNg 3yl |
§8uiBexped

|euid1u0 s3] U] 98eJanaq Jo a|qIpa

‘BuiBeyped |euiduo ay1 aAlas Aayy op ‘uondwnsuod

S} WOJ} 3|qIpa ue aaow=aJ Jo 1no Jnod jou Aew ssauisng ay | 91IS-U0 SJ3JJ0 SSauisng ayl 4|

uondwnsuo) a}s-uQ — aduejjdwo) 3npoid

‘Alesa|!

p|os 8uiaq aJojalay)l pue dwsy jou pue siqeuued

S| JOMO[} Y3 21BJIpUl OS|E P|NOM P|OYSaJ4yl %E'0 a3yl

P322Xa p|noMm G-e3|ap 1By} B|NWIO} uollejAxogledsp
2yl Japun 1eyl Suimoys sisAjeue Jo 211D Y e

uoljew.loju| jeuonippy SjuUaWIWo) | ON | SAA uonsanp




Appendix C: Enforcement Notice from
the Office of Cannabis Management

MY MiNNesOTA
OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT



MY MINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT

Enforcement Notice from the Office of Cannabis
Management

Dear Registered Hemp Derived Cannabinoid Business:

The Office of Cannabis Management (OCM), established in 2023, is charged with developing and implementing
the operational and regulatory systems to oversee the cannabis industry in Minnesota as provided in Minnesota
Statutes Chapter 342.

When Minnesota legalized the sale of adult-use of cannabis flower, cannabis products, and lower-potency hemp
edibles/ hemp-derived consumer products, the Minnesota Legislature included statutory provisions, Minnesota
Statutes, chapter 152.0264, making the sale of cannabis illegal until a business is licensed by OCM. The Office of
Cannabis Management has not yet issued licenses for the cultivation, manufacture, wholesale, transportation or
retail sale of cannabis, therefore any retail sales of cannabis products, including cannabis flower, are illegal.

The Office of Cannabis Management has received complaints of retailers selling cannabis flower under the label
of hemp flower. Under an agreement between The Minnesota Department of Health (MDH) and OCM,
inspectors from MDH will begin to examine any flower products being sold during their regular inspections to
determine whether they are indeed hemp flower or cannabis flower.

In distinguishing between hemp and cannabis flower, OCM, consistent with federal rules and regulations related
to hemp under 7 CFR 990.1, will consider the total concentration of THC post- decarboxylation, which is the
process by which THC-A is converted into Delta-9 to produce an intoxicating effect. The examination of raw
flower products will include reviewing the certificate of analysis for compliance in several areas, including:

Compliance with the requirement that raw flower listed for sale includes a Certificate of Analysis (COA).
Products for sale without a COA will constitute an illegal sale.

A COA that affirms concentrations of 0.3% or less of Delta-9 on a dry weight basis. Products exceeding 0.3%
Delta-9 dry weight are considered marijuana and are therefore illegal to sell.

A COA that confirms that the total levels of Delta-9 and THC-A after the decarboxylation process do not exceed
0.3%. A COA that indicates the raw flower will exceed 0.3 percent Delta-9 post-decarboxylation, or a subsequent
test conducted by an independent laboratory utilized by OCM that confirms Delta-9 in excess of 0.3 percent will
be considered illegal.

Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 342 governs Minnesota’s cannabis market, and empowers OCM to ensure
regulatory compliance. Minnesota Statutes, chapter 342.09, subdivision 4 prohibits the retail sale of cannabis
flower and cannabis products “without a license issued under this chapter that authorizes the sale.”

Enforcement Notice 1}



To date, the Office of Cannabis Management has not issued any cannabis licenses, applications for licenses are
expected to be available in the first half of 2025. As such, selling cannabis is a clear violation of law. Be aware
that under Minnesota Statutes, 342.09, subdivision 6, OCM may assess fines in excess of a $1 million for
violations of this law. Likewise, under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 342.19, OCM is empowered to embargo any
product that it has “probable cause to believe . . . is being distributed in violation of this chapter or rules
adopted under this chapter[.]” Furthermore, violations of law may be considered in future licensing decisions
made by OCM.

As inspectors enter the field, we encourage you to review the products you are currently selling to ensure they
fall within the thresholds outlined above. If you have any questions related to the products you are selling,
please send an email to cannabis.info@state.mn.us.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

( ’/Ubf-(]/ 7 /mt/\x\‘

Charlene Briner
Interim Director
Office of Cannabis Management

Enforcement Notice



Appendix D: Notice to Unlawful

Cannabis Sellers

MY MinNNesOTA
OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT



MY MINNesoOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT
Notice to Unlawful Cannabis Sellers

This notice is to inform you that your current course of action may run afoul of Minnesota law, and
continuing this course of action may result in civil actions and potential criminal prosecution. To avoid
such outcomes, you should immediately cease and desist any plans to engage in the unlicensed sale of
cannabis and cannabis products.

Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 342 (www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/342) governs Minnesota’s
cannabis market, and empowers OCM to ensure regulatory compliance. Minnesota Statutes, chapter
342.09, subdivision 4 (www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/342.09#stat.342.09.4) prohibits the retail sale
of cannabis flower and cannabis products “without a license issued under this chapter that authorizes
the sale.” To date the Office of Cannabis Management has not issued any retail, or other, cannabis
licenses. As such, your plan to sell cannabis in a retail setting at this date would be in flagrant violation
of the law. Be aware that under Minnesota Statutes, 342.09, subdivision 6
(www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/342.094stat.342.09.6), OCM may assess fines in excess of a
$1,000,000 for violations of this law.

Likewise, under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 342.19 (www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/342.19), OCM
is empowered to embargo any product that it has “probable cause to believe . . . is being distributed in
violation of this chapter or rules adopted under this chapter[.]” It is believed that products attempted
to be sold at your retail location might be distributed in violation of the law, and would therefore be
subject to embargo by OCM. Under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 342.19, subd. 2
(www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/342.19#stat.342.19.2), once embargoed OCM “shall release the
cannabis plant, cannabis flower, cannabis product, artificially derived cannabinoid, lower-potency
hemp edible, or hemp-derived consumer product when this chapter and rules adopted under this
chapter have been complied with or the item is found not to be in violation of this chapter or rules
adopted under this chapter.”

While Minnesota has legalized the sale of adult-use of cannabis flower, cannabis products, lower-potency
hemp edibles, or hemp-derived consumer products, the legislature did add new statutory provisions,
Minnesota Statutes, chapter 152.0264 (www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/152.0264), making illegal the
unlawful sale of cannabis. As there are not yet any licenses issued by OCM for the cultivation,
manufacture, wholesale, transportation, or retail of cannabis, any sales of cannabis products in excess of
the limits in 152.0264 is illegal.

If you are only planning to sell cannabinoid products that are derived from hemp, you should ensure that
the sale of those products is consistent with Minnesota Statutes, chapter 151.72
(www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/151.72), including but not limited to the requirement that your
business be registered with the Commissioner of Health, and that all products are in compliance with the
relevant statutes.

Finally, in addition to the state laws outlined above, please be aware that any retail location must be in
compliance with local government ordinances and zoning requirements.

OCM takes seriously its charge to enforce Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 342, and its responsibility to
ensure a safe and legal cannabis market. In order to avoid the above-described actions, all attempts to
open a cannabis retail dispensary in Minnesota without the appropriate license should be ceased.



EAGLE LAKE

WHERE OPPORTUNITY SOARS

705 Parkway Ave, PO Box 159, Eagle Lake, MN 56024
(507) 257-3218 Phone (507) 257-3220 Fax

Tuly 25, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor Norton and City Council
From: Jennifer J. Bromeland, City Administrator
Re: Updated Job Descriptions and Commencement of Hiring Process

Attached you will find job descriptions for the position of Administrative Clerk and Community
Development Coordinator. The Personnel Committee recently met to review job descriptions
and recommends that the updated descriptions be approved.

Following approval to commence the hiring process this evening, City staff will post both
positions on the City’s website, Facebook page, on the League of Minnesota Cities website, and
Indeed. Applications will be accepted for a minimum of two weeks and deemed open until filled.
Minnesota Valley Council of Governments (MVCOG) will assist City staff with advertising,
reviewing and scoring applications, and interviewing. The City’s Personnel Committee will be
invited to sit in on the interviews. The 2024 pay range for the position of Administrative Clerk is
$19.31-$25.20, while the pay range for the position of Community Development Coordinator is
$25.95-$33.87.

A motion is needed to approve the updated job descriptions and authorize the commencement of
the hiring process.

City Administrator



JOB DESCRIPTION

CITY OF EAGLE LAKE
Position Supervisor Department
Administrative Clerk City Administrator Administration
FLSA Classification Supervises
Non-Exempt None

POSITION SUMMARY

Under the general supervision of the City Administrator, the Administrative Clerk performs varied
and increasingly responsible office and administrative support work related to serving and assisting
customers and others who visit City Hall; preparing and processing cash collections for the City;
preparing transaction repotts; providing clerical support to the City Administrator and other City
departments as requested; composing routine correspondence independently and as assigned; filing
and retrieving correspondence and other information as needed; ordering supplies as needed;
preparing water utility billing statements; issuing City permits; and other functions as may be
apparent or assigned.

RELATIONSHIPS
EMPLOYEE CONTACTS
Considerable contact with most employees.

OUTSIDE CONTACTS
Considerable contact with the public, both on the phone and in person. May also be in contact with
other local, county, state, federal agencies, contractors and consultants.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS

® Processes and maintains records concerning utility accounts payable.
e Types reports, correspondence, bills, receipts, schedules, minutes, public hearing notices, etc.

® Answers the phone; greets the general public and responds to inquiries or refers to the proper
official.

e Schedules appointments.

e Maintains electronic and paper files and recommends changes in filing systems. Responsible for
the City’s Records Retention Program.

e Compiles and prepares for distribution financial, statistical, activity, and legal reports as assigned.
e  Opens and distributes mail to appropriate departments.

e Attends Planning Commission meetings and takes minutes, as necessary.

e Issues building permits, zoning permits and chicken and dog licenses.

e  Assists in processing payroll, as necessary.



e Assists City departments with administrative duties.

e Assists in marketing and promoting the City including, but not limited to: distributing
communications apptroved by the City Administrator and updating City’s website and social
media sites with approved communications.

e Assists with rental housing license process, as necessary.
e Maintains and orders office supplies.
e Manages the rental process for City facilities including the Council Chambers and Park Pavilion.

e Issues nuisance notices as assigned, tracks compliance, and coordinates abatement activities with
public works.

e Monitors the front entrance and waiting space to ensure a clean and welcoming environment.
e  Assists in the preparation of City Council meeting and City Committee packets.

e DPerforms physical and mental demands and work environment requirements for this position.
e Attendance during regularly scheduled work hours and outside regular hours as necessary.

e DParticipates in safety training as part of the City’s Regional Safety Group.

e Effective and respectful communication and interactions with other employees, supervisors,
individuals from other organizations, and citizen customers.

e Maintains confidentiality in dealing with not public data and sensitive information.

e DPerforms other duties when assigned or when necessary.

EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE
» Minimum: Must possess a high school diploma or GED. Experience in a work environment
with Word, Excel, desktop publishing programs, and/or financial software.

» Desirable: Two (2) years postsecondary education. Experience in clerical or administrative
suppott, financial transactions, or high-volume customer service. Experience working in
local government.

CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT
e Must possess a valid driver's license and be able to drive in the State of Minnesota.

e Ability to work evening and extended hours.
e DMust satisfactorily complete a background examination.
e Must comply with organizational and departmental policies.

e Must comply with data practices policies and standards relative to not public data. Any access to
not public data should be strictly limited to accessing the data that is necessary to fulfill the
employment responsibility. While data are being accessed, incumbent should take reasonable
measures to ensure the not public data are not accessed by individuals without a work reason.



Once the work reason to access the data is reasonably finished the not public data must be
propetly stored according to city policy and the Minnesota Statutes.

NECESSARY KNOWILEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES

Excellent customer setvice skills and ability to use tact and courtesy when communicating with

the public.

Knowledge of telephone etiquette and techniques.

Knowledge of practices and procedures of computerized data entry and retrieval.
Working knowledge of computers and computer applications.

Knowledge of office practices and procedures and standard office equipment.
Knowledge of modern procedures of cashiering and data processing methods.
Ability to act independently while performing required tasks.

Ability to make arithmetical computations and count cash rapidly and accurately.

Extensive experience in all areas of clerical skills, including typing, mathematical computation,
personal computers, miscellaneous office machines, filing, composing business correspondence,
organizing and managing operating systems in an office setting.

Ability to problem-solve issues ranging from the routine to the complex.
Ability to prioritize work assigned for optimum efficiency.

Willingness to accept responsibility, take initiative, and work independently to accomplish the
goals assigned.

Willingness and ability to learn about new equipment.
Ability to perform a variety of clerical and manual tasks.

Ability to listen, speak, and communicate in an effective manner with a diverse group of
individuals both inside and outside the organization.

Ability to provide assistance and coordinate work with others.

Ability to speak and write effectively to respond to complaints and requests on a full range of
issues and compliance standards.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Requites incumbent to work inside, alone, with othets, around others, and have contact with the
public.



e Activities that occur extensively (more than 6 houts) are communicating verbally, using
interpersonal skills, concentrating, working with interruptions, time management, using fingers,
wiists, and hands, fine manipulating, talking, hearing, using near vision, visual accommodation,
color vision, and petipheral vision.

e Activities that occur frequently (from 4 to 6 hours) are problem solving and sitting.

¢ Activities that occur occasionally (from 1 to 3 hours) are using analytical ability, standing,
walking, and using far vision.

o Activities that occur infrequently (up to 60 minutes) are communicating in writing, using
organizational skills, using creativity, bending, stooping, squatting, pushing, pulling, twisting,
climbing staircases, teaching straight, above, and below shoulder level with both shoulders
individually or at the same time, handling, using both feet individually or at the same time,
carrying and lifting up to 24 pounds.

JOB LOCATION/EQUIPMENT UTILIZED

The position is located at City Hall. Equipment used includes, but is not limited to, the following:
petsonal computer with a variety of softwate applications, cash register, telephone, fax machine,
copiet, calculator, and scanner. This position does require the operation of an automobile.




The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and employee and is subject to
change by the employer as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job change.

Revised: July 2024



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
COORDINATOR

Job Title: Community Development Coordinator
Department: Community Development

Purpose: Oversees planning and economic development related activities and projects.

Organizational Relationships

Reports to: City Administrator

Communicates with: Internally — City Council, Planning Commission, Economic
Development Authority, Park Board, and City Staff; Externally — Citizens, contractors,
developers, local, state or federal agencies.

Supervises: None.
ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS

1. Facilitates Economic Development Authority: Prepare staff reports, type
agendas and minutes, and make recommendations to facilitate Economic
Development Authority meetings.

2. Facilitates Planning Commission Meetings and Processes: Prepare staff
reports, type agendas and minutes, and make recommendations to facilitate
Planning Commission meetings.

3. Revolving Loan Fund Program: Processes applications for revolving loan
funds. Works with Revolving Loan Committee on reviewing applications.

4. Economic Development: Oversees the business recruitment, retention, and
expansion of Eagle Lake’s economic development.

5. Review Building Permits & Zoning Applications: Assist applicants with permit
process. Ensure compliance of uses of land with zoning code and land
use/comprehensive planning documents.

6. Prepare & Update Land Use Documents: Keep land use policies and
documents current with existing laws and needs of the community. Prepare and
present to Planning Commission for approval and ultimately to City Council if
policy or document is to be updated.

7. Subdivision Review: Oversees the project review process pertaining to new
subdivision developments. This includes working with City Administrator, City
Engineer, and appropriate staff for public works and public utilities.

8. Grant Administration: Write grants as directed or needed related to community
development.

November 2022
Revised: July 2024



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
COORDINATOR

9. Provide Information to Citizens: Discuss issues and questions citizens may
have regarding zoning code, comprehensive plan, variances, conditional use
permits, annexations, building permits, etc.

Other Duties and Responsibilities
1. Occasionally required to answer incoming calls and help customers in the front
office and direct them accordingly.

2. Performs other related duties as assigned.
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, and ABILITIES

Must possess knowledge of current land use practices.

Must possess knowledge of state statutes that pertain to the field of planning and
economic development.

Must possess ability to work and communicate, in verbal and written fashion,
with the public, planning and zoning commission, city council, and work groups.
Must be able to organize and facilitate public meetings in conjunction with the
chairpersons of the planning commission and economic development authority.
Must possess research skills.

Must have a working knowledge of Windows based software, Microsoft Word,
Excel, GIS, and have an ability to continue learning other software or updates of
existing software.

vv VWV V¥V VYV

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

This position requires B.A. or B.S. in city planning, urban studies, public administration,
or related field. An individual nearing completion of such degree may also be considered
for this position.

Preferred Qualifications

Preferred qualifications for this position would be an M.A. in urban studies, public
administration or related field, experience in planning, economic development and GIS or
any combination of the three.

Working Conditions

Work is performed in typical office environment with travel within/without the City to
observe projects and attend meetings. Operates either personal or City vehicle for regular
transportation needs. Sits for extended periods of time. Noise in work place is usually
quiet but may be exposed to louder noises at work sites. Uses near vision, ability to
focus, sense of touch, and hearing. Uses fine and large motor movements at times.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to use hands

November 2022
Revised: July 2024



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
COORDINATOR

to finger, handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls and talk or hear. The employee is
occasionally required to stand, walk, reach with hands and arms, and stoop, kneel,
crouch, or crawl. The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 25 pounds.

Hours of Work
Monday-Friday, 8:00 a.m.-4:30 p.m., and attendance at before and after work meetings as

needed.

November 2022
Revised: July 2024



